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Clark Schaefer Hackett &(o.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Sidney, Ohio

We have audited the basic financial statements of City of Sidney, Ohio (the City), as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2001, and have issued our report thereon dated May 7, 2002. We conducted our
audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. :

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s basic financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that
we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated May 7, 2002.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation
to the basic financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving
the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have
reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated May 7, 2002.



This report is intended for the information of the Mayor and members of City Council, management, the
Auditor of State of Ohio, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Springfiel
May 7, 2002



Clark Schaeier Hackett &Co

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Sidney, Ohio ‘

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of City of Sidney, Ohio, (the City) with the types of compliance -
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of -
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.



Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the basic financial statements of City of Sidney, Ohio, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2001, and have issued our report thereon dated May 7, 2002. Our audit was performed for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of City of Sidney, Ohio.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. ’

This report is intended for the information of the Mayor and members of City Council, management, the -

Auditor of State of Ohio, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sprlng \ﬁ%
May 7, 2002 _



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Federal Project
CFDA Number 'Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (Passing Through Ohio
Department of Development Office of Housing
and Community Partnerships):
Community Development Block Grant * 14.228 A-F-00-177-1 $ 218,000
Community Development Block Grant * 14228 A-C-01-177-1 18,037
Community Development Block Grant * 14228 RLF Funds 301,545
Community Development Block Grant *  14.228 A-C-99-177-1 8,400
545,982
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 A-C-01-177-2 5,700
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 A-C-99-177-2 242,048
247,748
Total U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development 793,730
U.S. Department of Transportation
(Passing through Ohio
Department of Transportation):
Public Transportation for Nonurbanized Areas 20.509 RPT-0075-017-982 87,110
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 87,110
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and
Nutrition Service (Passing through Ohio
Department of Education, Division of School
Food Service):
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 ) 8,275
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 8,275
U.sS. Depannient of Justice
(Passing through the City of Piqua, Ohio):
COPS Universal Grant 16.710 98-UMWX1565 36,037
Drug Control and System Improvement Act 16.579 2000-DG-A01-7125 123,996
Total U.S. Department of Criminal Justice 160,033
Total Federal Awards $ 1,049,148

* Denotes major program.
(1) - Project number not available.

See notes to the schedule of expenditures fo federal awards.
-5-



NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE A—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is a summary of the activity of City of
Sidney, Ohio’s federal award programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.



OMB CIRCULAR A-133 § .505

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(DM)G) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Ungqualified
(@)(1)(@ai) Was there any material control weakness No
conditions reported at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(DGi) Was there any other reportable control No
weakness conditions reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported non-compliance at the | No
» financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(DMAEv) Was there any material internal control No
weakness conditions reported for major
federal programs?
(d(D(Ev) Was there any other reportable internal No
control weakness conditions reported for
major federal programs?
(D)) Type of Major Programs' Compliance Unqualified
Opinion
(D()(vi) Are there any reportable findings under No
§.510?
(d)()(vii) Major Programs (list): U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban
Development,
CFDA #14.218
(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs Type A: > $300,000
Type B: All others
(@(D)(x) Low Risk Auditee? Yes




Findings: None

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

Findings: None




CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
DECEMBER 31, 2001

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 § .315(b)

None
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City of Sidney

June 27,2002 -
To the Honorable Mayor, City Council and the Citizens of the City of Sidney, Ohio:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City .of Sidney, Ohio for ‘the year ended
December 31, 2001, is hereby submitted for your review. This report represents the commitment of the
City of Sidney to adhere to nationally recognized standards of excellence in its financial reporting.

Management is responsible for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the
- presentation, including all disclosures. We:believe that the data presented in this report is accurate in all
material respects and is reported in a manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the City. Further, we believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understandmg of the City of Sldney s activities have been included.

Tlns Comprehenswe Annual Fmanc1a1, Report incorporates financial reporting standards established
by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 — Basic Financial Statements-and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. Statement No. 34 was
developed to make annual financial reports of governments more comprehensive and easier to understand
" and use. All required elements of Statement No. 34, except for the requirement to retroactively report
general infrastructure assets, were implemented in the 2000 CAFR, three years before the required-
implementation date. Retroactive restatement of genetal infrastructure assets is not required until the report
for the year ending December 31, 2007 however, management mtends to comply with this requirement in
advance of the due date.

This report is presented in three sections:

1. The Introductory Section includes this letter of transmittal, the City’s organizational chart, a
listing of principal City officials and the Certificate of Achievemeént for Excellence in Financial -
" Reporting. This section is unaudited. '
2. The Financial Section of the report is structured in the form of a “financial reporting pyramid”
that allows the reader to move from less detailed financial reports to more detailed reports. The
- financial section includes the Independent Auditors” Report, the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements including the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements,
and Required Supplementary Information. Finally, the supplemental financial section contains
~ specific combining statements of individual funds for the reader who desires more detailed
financial statements. e
3. The Statistical Section presents selected financial and demographic data, generally presented on
a multi-year basis. This section is unaudlted .
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THE CITY OF SIDNEY
General Information '

- The City of Sidney isa progressive, growing community located on Interstate 75 in west central Ohio,
approximately 37 miles north of Dayton, 85 miles west of Columbus, 100 miles south of Toledo, and 120
miles east of Indianapolis. The City, the county seat of Shelby County, was incorporated in 1820.

‘The City’s population growth trend averaged 12.2% per decade from 1950 to 2000. Although the
growth rate has slowed somewhat in recent decades, steady growth continues. The 2000 Census reported a -
“total population 0f 20,211, an increase of 8.0% over the 1990 census.

City of Sidney Population 1950-2000

2000
1990
1980
1970

1960

1950

Year

0 /5000 10,000 15000 20,000 25000

- Population - Source: U.S. Census Bureau

-Municipal Services and Facilities

The City is a total service community providing a broad range of services for the citizens of Sidney,
including: police and fire protection; emergency medical / ambulance services; water treatment and
distribution; sanitary sewer and waste water treatment services; storm water management; street
construction and maintenance; refuse / garbage collection and disposal; parks and recreation facilities and
programs; operation and maintenance of a municipal cemetery; and operation and maintenance of a
municipal airport. -

Governmental Organization

In 1954, the voters of Sldney adopted a charter implementing a council-manager form of government.
Accordmgly, the City may exercise all powers of local self-government under the Ohio Constitution to the
extent not in conflict with applicable general laws of the State. This form of “home rule” provides a great
measure of local administrative and legislative control and efﬁmenmes while maintaining direct
participation by the re51dents of the community.

The legislative authority of the City is vested in a seven-member Council. Three members are elected
at large and four represent specific wards of the City. Council members are elected to over-lapping four
year terms. The Council enacts legislation to provide for City services, adopt budgets, levy taxes, borrow
money, license and regulate businesses and trades, and perform such other duties consistent with the
Charter. The presiding officer of the Council is the mayor who is a member of Council. The mayor is
elected to that position by a vote of the Council members. Council positions, including the mayor, are part-
time positions. ' ’

- i -



The chief executive and administrative officer of theCity is the City Manager, who is appointed for
an indefinite term and serves at the pleasure of Council. The City Manager has the authority to appoint and
remove all City employees, subject to civil service regulations, except the Law Director and City Clerk.
The City Manager directs the administration of all C1ty departments except as provided by Charter and is
the contracting officer of the C1ty

The Finance Officer, who is appointed by the City Manager, is the chief fiscal officer of the City. The
Finance Officer exercises the powers otherwise granted to the City Auditor and City Treasurer positions
~under the laws of the State of Ohio. As such, the Finance Officer is charged with the responsibility of
receiving, disbursing, and maintaining custody of all funds of the City. Also, the Finance Officer advises
~ the City Manager and Council’ concérning financial matters and assists the City Manager in the preparahon
of the budget

The Law Director is appomted by Council and serves at their pleasure. The Law Director is the legal
advisor, attorney and counsel for the City and performs duties pursuant to the Charter and general laws of

- . the State pertaining to mum01pa1 legal -advisors.

Degartmental Highlight — Parks and Recreatioh

- Each yeer in this report we spotlight the activities and accomplishrflents of one of the outstanding
‘departments or divisions of the City. This year, the focus is upon the Parks and Recreation department.

The City of Sidney’s Parks and Recreation department is comprised of the recreation division, parks
and grounds division, urban forestry division, Monarch Community Center division, swimming pool
division, and cemetery d1v151on There are thlrteen full-time employees and approximately 50 to -55
seasonal employees

The Clty of Sidney places a strong emphasis on the importance of a quality parks system. - Every -
neighborhood is within a short distance (most are within one-half mile) of one of the 18 neighborhood
parks, and everyone can enjoy the magnificent 180-acre Tawawa Park. The parks and grounds division
maintains these parks, totaling 380 acres, as well as 250 acres of public grounds, 14 baseball and softball
fields; 12 soccer fields, 33 park shelters 18 modular playground structures, and 3. 5 miles of bikeway. '

Tawawa Park: A view of the covered bridge over Tawawa Creek.
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The recreation division conducts many programs, most free of charge, throughout the year. This
division manages an aquatic facility with three pools and many interactive play features. During the
summer months, approximately 30 youth recreation programs are offered free of charge and park attendants
oversee activities at.the neighborhood -parks. Throughout ‘the year, the recreation division sponsors
““Saturday ‘Night Live” events at the. YMCA and open gym nights at the Salvation Army for local youths.
. Also, they manage a grant-funded summer food program that serves approximately 5,000 meals at two
different sites within the City.

Free basketball clinic at a neighborhood park.

. The municipal pool complex contains 3 pools varying in size from an Olympic size pool to a
children’s wading pool. The two smallest poois have been refurbished for the 2002 season. The five-year
plan calls for-the addition of two water slides for the intermediate pool in 2003. Daily attendance at the
pool averages about 800. :

The urban forestry division services over 10 000 trees, plants approximately 160 to 180 trees and
fertilizes about 400 trees yearly. The City has been a member of Tree City USA for 13 years.:

The Parks and Recreation deparlment maintains the Monarch Community Center. This building
- houses the Senior Citizens Center and the Gateway Arts Council. The City’s recreation coordinator assists
the ‘Senior Citizens Center with programming, Membershlp at the Senior Citizens Center is approximately
1 330

The cemetery division maintains the municipal Graceland Cemetery. There are approxmately 90
- burials per year in this 110-acre cemetery.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Economic Environment — Historically

Sidney’s history as a strong industrial center is rooted in its strategic location. The construction of the
Miami-Erie Canal between 1825 and 1837 connected Sidney with the major trade centers in Ohio to the
~north and south. As the influence of the canal declined, railroads emerged. ' East-west rail began to be laid
in Sidney in 1851, followed by north-south rail in 1856. Sidney is still served by these railroad lines today.
In the 1950’s, the interstate highway began to play a significant role .in the development of the City.
Today, Interstate 75 connects Sidney with Canada to the north and Florida to the south. Sidney has four
interchanges on Interstate 75, providing quick and convenient access for both commerc1al and industrial
users.



The local econorriy has grown ata robust and steady pace for the last four-decades. Income subject to
the City of Sidney income tax has grown at an average annual rate of approximately 8% since 1962.
However, due to the economic slowdown, there has no growth in the last 2 years.

CITY OF SIDNEY INCOME TAX
" TAXABLE INCOME 1962-2001
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Economic EnVironment Today

The City of Sidney is an attractive Iocauon for industrial development. Sldney ranks number 20 on
Site Selection Magazmes Top 100 Small Towns for new and expanded facilities for the period 1989 to

2000

The City of Sidney has a strong industrial base that is diversified and not totally dependent upon one
. sector of the economy. The ten largest employers operating within the City in 2001 were:

Company
Copeland Corporation

- American Trim LLC
Wilson Memorial Hospital

Alcoa Building Products, Inc.

Sidney Board of Education
"Gilardi & Sons, Inc

NK Parts, Inc.

Shelby County
Lear.Operations Corporation
Ross Aluminum Foundries

_ Primary Business

Air compressor manufacturing

Appliance and auto manufacturing

Health care , :
Diverse aluminum product manufactunng
Public education

Food processing :
Warehousing and distribution

County government

Automotive supplier

Aluminum foundry

In addition to the above employers, Honda 6f America Mfg., Inc., operates a major auto engine plant
just eight miles outside of the City that significantly benefits the City’s mdusmal commercial, residential

and income tax bases

To encourage further economic growth, the City has reserved vacant acreage considered to be choice
industrial sites in an Industrial Zoning Classification. These. sites generally have all utilities within

connection distance. Improvements to State Route 47, widening the road from two to four lanes, preceded
the development of the City’s newest industrial park, Stolle West. It is a 142-acre industrial park in a prime
location. The developer has already put with utilities and streets in place.

Co-vi-



2001’7 Economic ’Activig_v_ and Outlook for the Future

Municipal income tax cash collections have not increased in the last two years, with 2001 collections
virtually identical to 1999 collections. Most of the difficulty is in net profits taxes. The local economy is
experiéncing the corporate profits downturn that has occurred throughout the nation. On the positive side,
taxes withheld by employers from their employees wages increased slightly in 2001, mdlcatmg stability in
employment.

The Shelby County unemployment rate at the end of the year was 4.0%, down from 4.2% at the end
of 2000. The statewide rate was 3.9%. As of the date this is being written, the latest data available — April
2002 - reports the U.S. rate at 5.7%, Ohio is 5.4%, and Shelby County is at 4.9%.

Despite the well-documented ‘negative events in 2001 — the tragedy of September 11, depressed
corporate profits, and the general economic sluggishness — industrial growth did occur within Sidney in
2001. - One of the factors that contributes to the growth in Sidney is a spirit of cooperation between the
public and private sectors. The West Ohio Development Council (WODC) is a non-profit corporation
organized to create more employment opportunities and retain the existing employment base in the Sidney
and Shelby County area. WODC’s 2001 Annual Report prov1des the followmg information on new
development activity in Sidney in 2001:

. & Cargill, Inc. completed a 110,000 square foot addition as well as adding machinery and equipment
for the introduction of a new dressings, sauces and mayonnaise division. Investment in the project
‘ * totaled $30.5 million and added 55 additional jobs. :

e Carglll Inc. began construction of a plant for the production’ of a food ingredient, The new plant
is estimated to cost $30 million and create 45'additional jobs. Lo
¢ Gates Formed Fibre Products transferred some of its auto interior processes from Detroit to Sidney
and made additional investment in machinery and equipment, which will total about $3 million

additional investment to Sidney. Afi estimated 69 local jobs are to be created.
o _ Bbi Enterprises began an investment of $7.9 million in additional real property, equlpment, and
inventory for a new line of automobile components. Th1s expansion is expected to create 90 new

jobs. . :

Certainly the issues that have negatively impacted the national economy in the last couple of years
have been felt in Sidney as well. However, the underlying strength of the local economy has minimized the -
effects and there has been little impact upon the City’s ability to provide quality services. When the
national economy rebounds, as history tells us it will,"the outlook for renewed economic vitality here in
Sidney looks favorable as the factors that have made Sidney an attractive industrial site for many years -
such as its favorable location, strong relationships between busmess and local government, and an
expanding population base - remain in place.

MAJOR INITIATIVES
For the Year

The City of Sidney continued to reinvesf into the infrastructure of the community in 2001 as well as
address the objectives identified in the 1997 Comprehensive Plan.

The streetscape plan for the downtown reached fruition in 2001. Sidney offers an historic downtown
featuring the famous Louis Sullivan-designed People's Savings & Loan building, the Monumental Building
(currently housing Sidney Municipal Court, originally erected as a monument to those Shelby County
residents who died in. the Civil War), and the Shelby County Courthouse. The Courthouse, which occupies
one city-block known as Court Square, has been named one of the "Great American Public Places".
Shelby County has dutifully maintained this 1883 structure, which acts as a focal point of our downtown.
Because the downtown is the oldest part of our community, the infrastructure was in need of upgrading and
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improvement. In 2001, water lines, sanitary sewer lines and gas lines were replaced, and a storm sewer
’ system was installed. In addition, all curb and gutter were replaced and the street reconstructed around the
court square. To improve the aesthetic-appearance after the infrastructure improvements were made, the
streetlights were replaced with decorative poles with light fixtures that resemble those that existed around -
the turn of the century. Brick pavers were installed at the corners and in a four-foot section along all curb
lines. The total project was completed at a cost of about $3.9 million. That cost was partially offset by the
use of about $1.3 million.in federal and state grant funds in the project. It is anticipated that property
owners in the area will also reinvest in their properties now that the public improvements are complete.

Shelby County Courthouse in the center of downtown A view of the downtown along Court Street

Planning began in 2001 for the renovation of the existing Municipal Building and/or construction of a
new police facility. The Municipal Building, originally constructed in 1939, no longer meets the space
needs of the various City departments. The primary need that will be addressed is to provide the police
department with appropriate facilities to meet both current and future programming needs. The first phase
of this project, currently underway, is an architectural study to determine the site requirements and needs
for space for each of the departments that occupy the Municipal Building. The renovatlon or construction
is currently scheduled for 2003. ,

Future Plans 7 L - -

The City of Sidney’s five-year capital improvement plan 1dent1ﬁed and scheduled several pro; ects that
w111 have an immediate effect on the quality of life in the community.

The wastewater treatment plant currently is operating near its treatment capacity of 5 million galions
per day (MGD). The City began a project in 2001, to be completed in 2002, which will increase the
capacity of the plant to-'7 MGD. The added capacity will position the City to accommodate future growth.
The project was funded by the issuance of $6.9 million general obligation bonds in 2001,

A 16-inch water main near Cargill, Inc. will be looped to the existing 16-inch water main on Kuther -
Road in 2002. This project, at an estimated $150,000, will increase fire flows and meet consumers’ current
-and future water needs in that industrialized area. -

A 16-inch water main will be extended in 2002 from Hoewrsher Road (Eagle Glen subdivision) under
the CSX railroad to be connected and looped to the existing water main at St. Rt. 29. This pIOJect will
increase water pressure and fire flows to the residential areas of the north end.

In 2002, the City began the first phase of a multi-year project to eliminate the Fa1r Road samtary
sewer lift station and install a gravity sewer line. This improvement will allow the City to serve
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-apprommately 300 acres of undeveloped land in a prime industrial area near the Interstate 75 / Fair Road
interchange,

The City of Sidoey last updated its Comprehens1ve Plan in 1997. According to the West Ohio
‘ Development Council, “Since 1997, industrial growth in Sidney has met or exceeded planned
expectations.” The comprehensive plan will be again be updated in 2002 to prov1de a blueprmt for future
growth and development in the community.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

: Accounting [ Budgetary Control System

Internal Controls. Management of the City is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of
an mternal control system that provides reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that:
- The City’s assets are protected against loss and unauthorized use or disposition; and
2. Adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:
1. The cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
2. The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is responsible for ensuring that
adequate controls are in place to ensure and document compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to these programs

Budgetar_y Controls City Council approves an annual budget for all funds and approves subsequent
amendments to that budget as needed. The “legal level of control” is the level of detail as approved by
Council in its appropriation ordinances. Expenditures and encumbrances cannot exceed the legal level of
control. Legal level of control for the City of Sidney is based on object of expenditure for each department
" as follows 1) Personal Services and 2) Contractual Materials and Other.

A purchasing control system is maintained which generally requires that an apphcable appropriation
be encumbered, or reserved, before a purchase may be made or a contract executed.

"RISK MAN. AGEMENT

The City of Sidney insures its business nsk through Miami Valley Risk Management Assoc1at10n,
Inc. (MVRMA) This organization is a consortium of municipalities located in southwest Ohio which,
begmmng in 1988, formed an association under Section 2744.081 of the Ohio Revised Code to act
collectively in addressing its members’ risk management and risk financing needs.. MVRMA provides a
combination of self-insurance and commercial re-insurance for its members’ property and casualty
exposures, administers a claims / litigation program and provides extensive safety / loss control consulting
and trammg : :

MVRMA was formed in 1988 by a core group of Dayton, Ohio area municipalities who possessed
professional administrations, stable operations, and unusually good claims and loss experience. Since then,
_the Association’s marketing committee has sought out cities with similar characteristics. The City of
Sidney joined in 1993. The 2001 membership consisted of these sixteen Ohio cities: Beavercreek, Blue
Ash, Indian Hill, Kettering, Madeira, Mason, Miamisburg, Montgomery, Sidney, Springdale, Tipp City,
Troy, Vandalia, West Carrollton, Wilmington and Wyoming,

The amount of each member’s anmual contribution for losses and operating costs is based upon a
weighted average computation that includes a four-year average of seven factors including the dollar



amount of claims expenses and losses, population, and property values. Claims experience is the most
heavily weighted factor.

A full-time executive director, a claims manager,” a loss control manager and. an administrative
assistant staff the Association’s Centerville, Ohio, office. It is a not for profit corporation that has
recognition as a tax exempt orgamization. It operates under bylaws and policies established by the
governing board which is composed of one trustee from each member city. The Association has been fully
audited by the Ohio Department of Insurance It is subject to an annual financial audit and publishes a
CAFR : : ‘ . :

. MVRMA provides in-house professional claims administration, with assistance as needed from Marsh
USA, Inc. The first $2,500 of each claims loss is a “deductible” that is fully payable by the member city
filing the claim. Claim settlements, payments and defense costs in excess of that amount are paid from the
reserves of the Association up to a maximum of $500,000 for liability claims and $150,000 for property
claims. Expenses for claims exceeding these limits are covered by the traditional insurance coverages
- purchased by the Association. Property is covered at replacement value and the max1mum for liability
coverage per occurrence is $11 million.

CASH MANAGEMENT

. The City of Sidney’s Investment and Deposit Policy, adopted by City Council under the authority
permitted an Ohio charter city to establish its-own investment policy, provides the gnidance for the City’s
“investment program. That policy siresses preservation of capital and protection of investment principal as
-.primary objectives. A secondary consideration is the optimization of investment returns at acceptable
levels of risk. . )

Eligible securities must have a matunty of five years or less from the date of purchase and be w1thm
one of the following classes:
1. Government securities issued by the United States govemment, Federal agencies
instrumentalities;
- 2. Certificates of deposrt if secured by proper collateral;
3.. Bankers acceptances issued by institutions ranked nationally as being in the top ﬁﬁy in asset
. and deposit size within their industry;
4. Repurchase agreements;
5. Commercial paper rated A-1/P-1; :
6. Money market funds whose portfohos consmt of instruments otherw1se authonzed in the
_ investment policy;
7. State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio;
8. NOW accounts or similar accounts.

" The investment portfolio at December 31, 2001 consisted of 32.6% certificates of deposit, 1.6% U.S.
Treasury bonds and notes, 63 9% federal agency / instrumentality notes, and 1.7% money market funds.

The City uses a passive investment style in which securities are generally held until their maturity |
dates. This style, in the spirit of the preservatlon of principal ob]ectlve helps avoid the necessity to. sell
securities at less than face value. .

The weighted average maturity of the portfolio at December 3 1‘ 2001 was 601 days and the weighted
average yield as of that date was 4.83%, compared to the benchmark 2-year U.s. Treasury yield of
apprommately 3.05%.



INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The basic financial statements of the City of Sidney, included in this report, were audited by the
independent accounting firm Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co. The financial statements have received an
“unqualified opinion” indicating that, in all material respects, the City’s basic financial statements are
presented fairly and in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The audit was also
designed to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act and the related U.S. Office of
Management and Budget’s Circular A-133. Generally accepted auditing standards and the standards set
forth in the General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards were used by the auditors in
conducting the engagement. The auditors” report on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations can be found in a separately issued single audit report.

AWARDS

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting to the City of Sidney for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2000. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for one year only. The City of Sidney has received the
Certificate of Achievement for three consecutive years. We believe that our current comprehensive annual
financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Distinguished Budget Presentation Award. The City received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award for its annual budget documents for both 2000 and 2001. In order to qualify for the
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget document was judged to be proficient in
several categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a
communications device. The 2002 budget document was submitted to the GFOA and we believe that it
meets the eligibility for another award.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation of this report was made possible by the efforts of the members of the Finance
Department. Special recognition is extended to Ginger Adams for her skillful preparation of the financial
statements and to Dianna Morrow for preparation of much of the source data used in the preparation of this
report.

Finally, a special thanks is extended to Mayor Frank Mariano and all the members of City Council
whose support enables the City of Sidney to strive for excellence in its financial reporting and to maintain
high standards of financial integrity.

Respectfully submitted,

Thomas L. Judy, CP
Finance Officer
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Clark Schaeler Hackett &Co

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Independent Audifors' Report

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Sidney, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sidney, Ohio, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2001, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the
City of Sidney’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sidney, Ohio, as of December 31, 2001, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 15, 2002
on our consideration of the City of Sidney's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted of the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,

accordingly, we express no opinion on them.



The accompanying required supplementary information, including the management’s discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 12 and 47 through 53 are not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We applied certain limited procedures, which consisted of
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion

on it.

Qast . W RTA

Springfield, Ohio
May 7,2002 -



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Unaudited

The management of the City of Sidney provides the foliowing information as -an introduction,
overview and analysis of the City’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2001. Readers
should also review the transmittal letter that begins on page ii and the basic financial statements on pages
" 13 — 24 to further enhance their understanding of the City’s financial performance. ’

Using this Annual Financial Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to- those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can first understand the City of Sidney as a financial whole. The
statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial conditions.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities (referred to collectively as the government-
wide statements) provide information about the activities as an entire operating entity, presenting both an
aggregate- view of the City’s finances and a longer-term view of those assets. -Major fund statements
provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services wefe financed

. in the short-term as well as what dollars remain for future spending. The proprietary funds statements are
prepared on the same basis as the government-wide statements.

Regorti'ng on the City of Sidney as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities

These government-wide statements answer the question “How did the City as a whole do financially
during 2001?” They are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, much the same way as for a private
enterprise. This basis of accounting includes all assets and liabilities and takes into account all of the
current year s revenues and: expenses regardless of when the cash is recelved or paid.

o The Statement of Net Assets. This statement (page 13) reports all assets and liabilities of the City as of
December 31, 2001. The difference between total assets and total habllltles is reported as “net assets”.
Increases in net assets generally indicate an improvement in financial position while decreases may
indicate a deterioration of financial position. v

e The Statement of Activities. This statement (page 14) serves the purpose of the traditional income
statement. It provides consolidated reporting of the results of all activities of the City for the year
ended December 31, 2001. Changes in net assets are recorded in the period in which the underlying
event takes place, which may differ from the period in which cash is received or disbursed. The
‘Statement of Activities displays the expense of the City’s various programs net of related revenues, as
well as a separate presentation of revenues available for general purposes.

Rey orting on the City of Sidney’s Most Significant Funds
Fund financial statements

These statements provide financial position and results of the City’s major funds. A fund is an
‘accounting entity created to account for a specific activity or purpose. Major funds of the City of Sidney
-are the General Fund, Street Repair and Maintenance Fund, Municipal Income Tax Fund, Capital
Improvement Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund and Solid Waste Fund. ~ The creation of some funds is
mandated by law and others are created by management to demonstrate financial compliance with
- budgetary or legal requirements. Funds are classified into three broad categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. :



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
~ For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
Unaudited

Governmental- funds. Governmental funds are used to account for “governmental-type” activities.
Unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund statements use-a “flow of
financial resources” measurement focus. That is to say, the operating statement of a governmental
fund attempts to answer the question “Are there more or less resources that can be spent in the near
future as a result of events and transactions of the period?” Increases in spendable fesources are
reported in the operating statement as “revenues” or “other financing sources.” Decreases in spendable
resources are reported as “expenditures” or “other financing uses.” We describe the differences
between governmental funds and governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities) in reconciliations presented beside the governmental fund financial
statements on pages 16 - 19.

The City of Sidney maintains 28 separate governmental funds. The governmental fund financial
statements on pages 16 through 19 separately display the governmental funds considered to be major
funds. All other governmental funds - the “non-major” funds. - are combined into a single column.
Detailed financial data for each of the non-major governmental funds is prov1ded in combining
statements in the supplementary information section of this report.

Proprietary funds. There are two types of propnetary funds: enterprise funds and internal servwe
funds. A

o Enter_prise funds — These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises for which 1) the intent is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) be recovered primarily through user charges, or 2)

. determination of net income is appropriate for management control, accountability or other

purposes. , _

. The City of Sidney’s Water Fund, Sewer Fund and Solid Waste Fund are all considered to be
major funds and are displayed separately in the proprietary fund statements on pages 20
through 23. The City has two other proprietary funds, the activities of which are.combined

_into one column for non-major funds.

o . Internal service funds — Often, governments wish to allocate the cost of providing certain
centralized services (e.g., motor pools, garages, data processing) to the other departments of
the government entity that use the services. An internal service fund is the appropriate
accounting mechanism when it is the intent of the government to recover the full cost of

' provxdmg the service through user charges to other departments.

The City of Sidney’s three internal service funds are combined into a single column.in the
proprietary fund financial statements. “Detailed financial data for those funds can be found in
the combining statements in the supplementary information section of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the City government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs.
‘The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

A Fiduciary fund statement is on page 24 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide addmonal and explanatory data. They are
‘an integral part of the basic financial statements.



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Management s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Unaudited

Required supplementary information. In addition to the basic financial statements and notes, this
report also contains required supplementary information (RSI). RSI includes budgetary schedules for
the general fund and major speCIal revenue funds This-data is on pages 47 to 51 of this report.

Supplémental infofnmtic;n. " Combining statements for non-major funds and budgetary schedules for
non-major special revenue funds and capital projects funds are presented in the Supplemental Section
of this report beginning on page 59. These statements and schedules are presented for purposes of

additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements..

The City of Sidney as a Whole

The following table presents condensed information on net assets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Net Assets
December 31, 2001 and 2000
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total .
. 2000, as 2000, as
- 2001 2000 2001 restated 2001 restated
Assets: ‘ - L
Current and other .
assets $ 16,483,758 $ 18,283,441 $12,016,057 $ 4,833,196 $28,499,815 $23,116,637
-Capital assets 23.576.322 16.054.833 . 22,011,220 21.235.083 45.587.542 37.289.916
Total assets " _40,060.080 34.338.274 34,027,277 26,068,279 74.087.357 60.406.553
Liabilities: . : .
Long-term liabilities 3,976,156 4,062,620 12,012,532 6,010,506 15,988,688 - 10,073,126
- Other liabilities 3.725.164 3,126.918 1,021.801 - 564,882 4,746,965 3,691,800
Total liabilities 7,701,320 - 7.189:538 . - 13.034.333 6.575388 _20,735.653 13.764.926
- Net Assets: - ‘
Invested in capital - :
assets, net of debt T 20,991,322 13,349,833 16,586,879 15,511,696 37,578,201 28,861,529
Restricted - 1,456,923 . 1,787,966 - - 1,456,923 1,787,966

‘Unrestricted 9.910.515 12,010.937 4,406,065 3.981.195 14,316.580 15,992,132

Total net assets $32,358.760 $27,148736 ~ $20992.944 $ 19492801 $53.351.704  §$46.641.627

Net .assets and capital assets at December 31, 2000 have been restated to capitalize business-type

activities’ infrastructure such as the water and sewer lines. This restatement increased capital assets and its
corresponding net assets, invested in capital assets, net of debt by $10.3 million. For a more detailed
explanation of this restatement, see note 11 on page 44 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Increases in net assets generally indicate an improvement in financial position. In total, net assets

increased from $46.6 million to $53.4 million in 2001. In looking at the components of net assets, the

“invested in capital assets, net of related debt” category increased from $28.9 million at December 31, 2000

to $37.6 million-at December 31, 2001. See the “Capital asset activity” portion of this analysis for factors
-contributing to this increase.

Restricted net assets are subject to external restrictions as to their use. This category of net assets

decreased from $1.8 million at December 31, 2000 to $1.5 million at December 31, 2001.
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The remaining unrestricted net assets are available for future use as directed by City Council. In
total, this amount decreased ‘$1.7 million. . Unrestricted net assets of the City’s governmental activities
declined $2.1 million while unrestricted net assets-of the business-type actjvities increased $0.4 million.
The decline in unrestricted net assets of governmental activities is to be expected in a year in which the
City makes significant amounts of capital purchases that are not financed with debt. The purchase of a
capital asset with cash will increase net assets invested in capital assets and reduce unrestricted net assets.
The downtown Streetscape project in 2001 was funded with unrestricted cash.

The following pie charts graphically illustrate these year-to-year changes in the components of net
assets. —

Components of Net Assets

December 31, 2001

Unrestricted
27%

Restricted

3%
- Invested in capital
assets '
70%
December 31, 2000
_ Unrestricted .
34% S
. Invested in capital
Restrc,,lcted assets
4% 62%
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The following table presents condensed information on the changes in net assets for the years ended

‘December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services
- Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and
contributions
General revenues:
Income taxes
Property taxes
Other taxes

Grants and other contributions

not restricted to specific
programs
Investment earnings
Gain/(loss) on sale of capital
assets

Miscellaneous

. Total revenues

Expenses
General government

Security of persons and
property

Health

Transportation

Community environment

Leisure time activities

Basic utility services

Interest on long-term debt

Water

Sewer

Solid Waste

~ Other business-type activities

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) before
transfers

Transfers

Change in net assets

Changes in Net Assets

For the Years Ended December 31. 2001 and 2000

Governmental activities Business-type activities Teotal
2001 2000 2001 2000 001 000
$1,543,438 $1,858,284  $ 6,488,911 $6,754,990  $8,032,349 $ 8,613,274
1,579,224 1,502,882 29,800 15,000 1,609,024 1,517,882
1,614,919 319,880 132,059 : 67,692 1,746,978 387,572
10,713,675 10,663,264 - - - 10,713,675 10,663,264
1,317,123 1,330,086 - - 1,317,123 1,330,086
189,818 561,207 - - 189,818 561,207
" 4,455,291 3,231,221 v 282,513 5,932 4,737,804 3,237,153
779,823 1,108,964 251,912 169,062 1,031,735 1,278,026
(322,766) (49,849) (23,210) 2,187 (345,976) (47,662)
- 155,936 297.769 - - 155,936 - 297.769
22,026,481 20,823,708 _7.161.985 7 7.014.863 29,188.486 27.838.571
2;004,01 3 1,726,953 - - 2,004,013 1,726,953
9,738,140 8,612,061 - - 9,738,140 8,612,061
262,976 - 175,285 - - 262,976 175,285
1,650,301 1,485,762 - - 1,650,301 1,485 ,762
1,190,361 1,298,204 - - 1,190,361 1,298,204
1,216,154 1,153,708 - - 1,216,154 1,153,708
182,387 172,563 - - 182,387 172,563
121,785 125,165 - . - 121,785 125,165
- - 2,592,405 2,389,507 2,592,405 2,389,507 -
- - 2,316,654 2,006,052, 2,316,654 2,006,052
- - 915,794 999,249 915,794 999,249
- - 287.419 2314711 287.419 314,711
16,366,117 14,749,701 6,112,272 5.709.519 22,478,389 20,459,220
V 5,660,364 6,074,007 1,049,713 V 1,305,344 6,710,077 7,379,351
(450.340) - (12.233) 450,340 . 12233 - -

Change in net assets was $6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 and $7.4 million for the
* prior year. Total revenues increased approximately $1.3 million, or 5.0%. Total expenses increased
approximately $2.0 million, or 9.9%.

Revenue from grants and contributions increased about $3.0 million in 2001, from $5.1 million to
$8.1 million. The largest item in this category was the donation of streets to the City by private developers
in the amount of $3.3 million. These donations as well as additional grant révenue received for a housing

program and the Streetscape project, account for most of the increase in grants and contributions.

The City’s single largest revenue source, municipal income tax revenue, showed virtually no

increase in 2001.
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The charges for services revenue declined from $8.6 million in 2000 to $8.0 million in 2001.
Business-type activities’ charges for services declined approximately $266,000 primarily due to reductions
in water and sewer revenues related to a slowing of industrial and residential growth as compared to the

prior year.

‘Airport fuel charges also declined due to the loss of a major hangar tenant. Charges for

services for governmental activities declined nearly $315, 000. The largest portion of this change was due
to a decrease in the activity of an economic development loan program.

Significant increases in total expenses include the following:

Security of persons and property increased $1.1 million, or 13%. Approximately $254,000
of this increase was due to municipal court costs. The court added a new deputy clerk
position for 2001 and had 3 new assistant bailiff/security officer positions in place for all of
2001 (versus only 4 months during 2000). Additionally, the court paid for an entire year of
utilities, cleaning and maintenance expenses related to the relocation to the Monumental
Building. Another $303,000 of the increase in security costs was attributable to personnel-
related increases in police patrol and fire. There were additional staff added during 2001
and fewer vacancies than in 2000 in the police and fire operations. The last significant
increase within this category was a new OCJS grant. This is a new fund for 2001 to account
for the City's administration of a regional drug unit grant with funds provided by a grant
from the Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services. Expenses totaled $161,000 for the year -
ended December 31,2001 related to this fund. '

Sewer expenses increased $311,000, or 15%. The majority of this increase was additional
depreciation expense. Depreciation increased, for the most part, because nearly $4.5 million
of sewer infrastructure was added as a prior period adjustment during 2001.

Water expenses increased $203,000, or 8%. Approximately half of this increase was due to
lime sludge removal expenses. The remainder of the increase was attributable to additional
depreciation expense during 2001. Like sewer, water main infrastructure with an estimated
cost of $6.5 million was added as a prior period adjustment during 2001.

Governmental activities

Governmental net assets‘increased by $5.2 million. Net assets invested in capital assets net of
related debt increased by $7.6 million, meanmg that net assets available for other governmental purposes
decreased by $2.4 million.

Expenses of governmcntal activities break down as follows:

General govt Security  Transportaton Comm. env. Leisure Other

Governmental Expenses by Program

59% 58% -

10% 10% 7o//° 9% 7% 8%

3%.--.3%

[ m2001 . m2000 |

From this chart, it is evident that even though governmental expenses have increased for the year
ended December 31, 2001, the composition of the expenses by program remained stable from 2000 to
2001. Security of persons and property - consisting mainly of police, fire, and municipal court activities —
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“comprises about 58% to 59% of governmental activities’ expenses. Transportation, which consists of street
repair and maintenance activities and the Dial-a-ride transportation system, accounts for about 10% of
expenses. The community environment program, which consists of activities such as community planning,-
. engineering, and code enforcement, makes up about 8% to 9% of expenses. Leisure time activities — the
parks and recreation programs — are responsible for 7% to 8% of governmental eXpenses.

_ The Statement of Activities reports the expenses of each of the governmental activities programs and

the related program revenue that offsets the cost of each program. The amount by which the cost of a
particular program exceeds its program revenue represents the extent to which that program must be
subsidized by general revenues, such as income taxes, property taxes and unrestricted contributions. The
following table and graph summarize the net cost of each program:

Egpensés and Program Revenue —~ Governmental Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2001 - - Year Ended December 31, 2000
) Program Net program Program Net program
: Expense revenue cost - - Expense revenue cost

" General government $ 2,004,013 $ - $2,004,013) $ 1,726953 $ - $ (1,726,953)
Security of persons o ' '
and property 9,738,140 1,495,815 = (8,242,325) 8,612,061 1,492,875 (7,119,186)

- Transportation 1,650,301 2,259,834 609,533 1,485,762 1,403,692 (82,070)
Community 7 ' .
environment 1,190,361 817,184 (373,177) 1,298,204 553,089 (745,115)
Leisure time ' . o .

-activities 1,216,154 - 31,132 (1,185,022) 1,153,708 101,749 (1,051,959)
All others 567.148 133,616 (433,532) 473.013 129.641 (343,372)
Total governmental
activities $16366,117 $4.737,581 $(11.628.536) $14.749.701 $3.681.046 §(11,068,655)

o 12,000 - Expenses and Program Revenue - Governmental Activities

g

b ]

3 10,000 -

2 ]

= ]

8,000
6,000
4,000

2,000 -
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Business-type activities ) : .
Business-type activities’ net assets increased $1.5 million. Investment in capital assets, net of
related debt increased $1.1 million. The remainder of the increase in net assets was in the unresfricted net

‘assets category.

It is the City’s policy that revenues of some of the City’s business-type activities (water, sewer and
residential waste pickup in the Solid Waste Fund) are expected to cover all program costs. The revenues of
other business-type activities cover specified portions of program costs. The following table and graph
summarize the expenses and program revenues for business-type activities: .

Expenses and Program Revenue ~ Business-type Activities

For Year Ended Decembér 31,2001 For Year Ended December 31, 2000
: Net ' | Net
Program program Program = program
s Expense revenue cost Expense revenue cost
Water , $2,592,405 $2,835,353 $242,948 $2,389,507 $2,879475 $ 489,968
Sewer ‘ 2,316,654 2,935,486 618,832 2,006,052 2,958,403 952,351
Solid Waste - 915,794 666,804 (248,990) 999,249 763,583 (235,666)
Other business-type ) _ : . _
activities ' : 287419 213.127 (74.292) 314,711 236221 __ (78.490)
Total governmental . _ -
activities - $6112.272 $6,650770 $538498 $5709519 $6,837,682 $1.128.163
Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type.Activities
w» 3500 - ,
2 3000 - 2,835 2679 2985 2o0
m .
8 2,500 |-
2 R
= 2,000 +=
1,500 -
1,000 4—
500 +—
0 -
Water Sewer Solid Waste Other business-type
: ' activities
B Expense 2001 - B Expense 2000 B Revenue 2001 B Revenue 2000

The large margin of sewer revenues over expenses is part of a plan by management to accumulate
sufficient cash reserves to accommodate future debt payments for the expansion of the wastewater
treatment plant. = This expansion is discussed in greater detail in the “Capital Asset Activity” and the
“Debt” sections of this analysis.

-10-
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In the solid waste fund, a cash subsidy of $165,340 from the General Fund to cover the cost of the
yard waste program, as well as cash reserves, were used to offset the operating deficit in the Solid Waste
Fund. The City’s five-year financial plan adopted by City Council in 2001 provides for -annual rate
increases in this fund to keep pace with the cost of prov1d1ng the service. The yard waste program will
continue to be subsidized by the General Fund.

Individual funds summary and analysn

Governmental funds, as stated earlier, focus on spendable resources and near-term inflows and
outflows of those resources. As such, fund balance is generally a good indicator of net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year, subject to any stated restrictions on its use. -

The. combined fund balances of the City’s governmental funds-at December 31, 2001 was $9.3
million as compared to $12.5 million at December 31, 2000. Much of this decrease was in the Capital
Improvement Fund, the fund balance of which decreased from $2.4 million to $1.0 million, due to the
completion of major capital projects in 2001. Also, the Monumental Bulldmg Renovation Fund balance
- decreased by over $400,000 as the renovation of the historic building into a new home for Sidney
Municipal Court was completed in 2001. The balance of the Municipal Income Tax Fund decreased from
$2.4 million to $1.3 million due to stagnation in tax collections resultmg from the slowed. economy

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City of Sidney, accounting for such activities
. as police and fire protection, emergency medical services, and parks and recreation. 'The General Fund
‘balance decreased from $3.3 million at the beginning of the year to $3.2 million at year-end. Total general .
fund revenues decreased $245,000. While local taxes revenues increased $54,000, intergovernmental
revenues, charges for services and investment income declined $157,000, $27,000 and $119,000,
respectively, as compared to the prior year. Adding to this decrease in revenues, expenditures increased
$778,000. The largest program increase was attributable to the security of persons and property which
experienced increased Muncipal Court costs and personnel costs for police and fire personnel.

Budget variations

The only significant variation of actual results compared to the General Fund budget was that
transfers-in were $8,430,407 compared to a budget of $9,200,000, a variance of $769,593. This variance is
entirely due to the transfer from the Municipal Income Tax Fund. Amounts received from the City’s
income tax are paid into the Municipal Income Tax Fund and 80% of the net proceeds after collection are
transferred to the General Fund. The budget had projected a growth in income tax collection in 2001 of
about 4% over 2000. However, due to the economic slowdown, actual income tax cash collections, net of
refunds, increased only 1.2%. The City has sufficient unreserved fund balance to absorb that shortfall, but
if such a trend continues for a prolonged period of time, it will become necessary to re-prioritize long-range
capital plans and consider other user charges and fees to offset the revenue loss.

Capital assef and debt administration

Capital asset activity
Significant capital activity for the year included:

v Plans were completed and construction began on the renovation of the wastewater treatment plant.
Construction in progress for this project at December 31, 2001 totaled $809,000.

v The streetscape plan for the downtown was completed. This included replacing water lines,
sanitary sewer lines and gas lines. A storm sewer system was installed. In addition, all curb and
‘gutter were replaced and the street reconstructed around the court square. The streetlights were
replaced. - Brick pavers were installed at various locations. The total project was completed at a

-11-
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cost of about $3.9 million. That cost was partially offset by the use of about $1.3 million in federal
and state grant funds in the project. '
v" The Monumental Building’s renovation was completed. Expenditures totaling an additional
'$261,000 were paid during 2001. This building now houses the municipal court.
v Developers donated streets to the City with a total estimated cost of approximately $3.3 million.

Additional detail on the capltal asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2001 is presented in
the Notes to-the Basic Financial Statements in note 5 on pages 36 — 37.

Debt .

Ohio law restricts the amount of debt that a City may issue.. The aggregate principal amount of
unvoted “net indebtedness” may not exceed 5.5% of the assessed valuation for property tax purposes of all
real and personal property located within the City. Certain debt with a repaymerit source other than general
tax revenues, is excluded from the definition of net indebtedness. Under that definition, the City has
approximately $2.6 million of net indebtedness as of December 31, 2001, leaving a legal debt margin for
unvoted debt of approximately $20 4 million.

An additional statutory limitation restricts total indebtedness — both voted and unvoted — to 10.5% of
the real and personal property assessed valuation. That limitation would restrict total City net indebtedness
to $43.9 million, leaving a total debt margin of approximately $41.4 million.

In 2000, the City entered into a wastewater planning and design loan agreement with the Ohio Water
Development Authority (O.W.D.A.) for an amount up to $620,000 to be used for the planning and design

- of an expansion to the wastewater treatment plant. The balance at December 31, 2000 was $168,387.

During 2001, additional loan proceeds of $242,337 were received. Durmg December 2001, this loan was
repaid in full using the proceeds from the following debt issuance. '

~ General obligation bonds totaling $6.9 million were issued during November 2001 to pay for the
expansion of the wastewater treatment plant. Interest rates for this new issuance of bonds range from 4.0%
t0 4.625% and are to be repaid beginning in the year 2003 through 2022.

A/v summary of debt outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000 is as follows:

Governmental activities - Business-type activities
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2001 2000 - 2001 2000
~ General obligatidn bonds. $ 2,585,000 $ 2,705,000 $11,700,000 $ 5,555,000
O.W.D.A. loan - - - 168,387
Total $2.585.000 $ 2,705,000 - $11,700,000 $5.723.387

Additional detailed data for all debt of the City of Sidney is presented in the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements in note 8 on pages 41 - 43 and in Tables 8 and 9 in the Statistical Section of this
report. .

Contacting the City’s management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and -
creditors with an overview of the City’s finances. If you have questions or need additional financial
information, please contact the Finance Ofﬁcer, City of Sidney, 201 West Poplar Street, Sidney, Ohio
45365.

-12-



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

ASSETS
'Pooled cash and investments
Receivables (net):
Income taxes
Property taxes
Other taxes , -
Accounts
Interest
Loans
Special assessments
Other
Internal balances )
Receivables from other governments
Inventory
Prepaid items
Capital assets: _
Capital assets not subject to depreciation:
Land '

Construction in progress

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

‘LIABILITIES

Accounts payable .
Salaries and benefits payable
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital projects

Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total

3 10,419,002

3 10,378,067

$ 20,797,069

2,980,452 - 2,980,452
1,328,656 - 1,328,656
13,180 - 13,180
- 1,195,710 1,195,710
180,328 62,675 243,003
118,784 T 118,784
20,883 - 20,883
413,335 6,493 419,828
24,499 (24,499) : .
700,260 - 700,260
160,283 254,867 415,150
124,096 142,744 266,840
2,216,301 526,604 2,742,905
495,936 809,183 1,305,119
20,864,085 20,675,433 41,539,518
$ 40,060,080 $ 34,027,277 74,087,357
$. 1,527,547  § 642,628 2,170,175
974,610 174,254 . 1,148,864
1,185 - 1,185
1,211,589 137,911 1,349,500
10,233 67,008 77,241
195,700 775,000 970,700
3,780,456 11,237,532 15,017,988
$ 7701320 °$ 13,034,333 20,735,653
$ - 20991322 $ 16;586,879 37,578,201
14,751 . 14,751
1,442,172 . 1,442,172
9,010,515 4,406,065 14,316,580
$ 32,358,760  $ 20,992,944 53,351,704
$ 40060080  $ . 34027277 74,087,357
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets -
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
R ; Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities: .
General government $ 2004013 § - $ - $ - $  (2,004,013) $  (2,004,013)
Security of persons and property 9,738,140 1,179,156 316,659 - (8,242,325) (8,242,325)
Health 262,976 133,616 - - (129,360) (129,360)
Transportation 1,650,301 100,435 1,253,290 906,109 609,533 - 609,533
Community environment 1,190,361 107,374 1,000 708,810 (373,177) ° A (373,177)
Leisure time activities 1,216,154 22,857 8,275 : - (1,185,022) (1,185,022)
Basic utility services 182,387 - - - (182,387) (182,387)
Interest on long-term debt 121,785 - - ' - (121,785) §/121,785)
Total governmental activities 16,366,117 1,543,438 1,579,224 1,614,919 (11,628,536 (11,628,536)
Business-type activities: -
Water 2,592,405 2,835,353 - - $ 242948 242,948
Sewer ) 2,316,654 2,803,427 - 132,059 618,832 618,832
Solid Waste 915,794 - 637,004 29,800 - (248,990) ~ (248,990)
Other business-type activities 287.419 213,127 - - (74.292) (74,292)
Total business-type activities 6,112,272 6,488,911 29,800 : 132,059 538,498 538,498
Total - ' $ 22,478,389 $ 8,032,349 $ 1,609,024 $ 1,746,978 (11,628,536) . 538,498 (11,090,038)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Income taxes ~ 10,713,675 . - - 10,713,675
Property taxes 1,317,123 - 1,317,123
Ofther taxes 189,818 - 189,818
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 4,455,291 282,513 4,737,804
Investment earnings 779,823 251,912 1,031,735
Loss on sale of capital assets - , '(322,766) (23,210) (345,976)
Miscellaneous ) 155,936 - 155,936
Transfers {450,340) 450,340 -
Total general revenues and transfers 16,838,560 - 961,555 17,800,115
' Change in net assets 5,210,024 1,500,053 6,710,077
Net assets - beginning, as restated 27,148,736 19,492,891 46,641,627

Net assets - ending

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
BALANCE SHEET
'GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
‘DECEMBER 31, 2001

ASSETS

Pooled cash and investments
Receivables (net):

Income taxes

‘Property taxes

Other taxes

Interest

Loans

Special assessments

Other
Due from other funds
Receivables from other governments
Inventory '

Prepaid items
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
" Liabilities: ‘
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Other accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total lLiabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Inventory
. Prepaid items
Encumbrances
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
“Capital prlojects funds

Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Street Repair & Municipal Capital
Maintenance ~ Income Tax Improvement
_General Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 3,963,649 $ 486,564 $ 640,870 $ 1,451,323
- - 2,980,452 -
1,328,656 - - -
13,180 - - -
151,715 - - -
1,534 - - -
181,726 02939 425 147,202
2,192 - - -
116,745 539,871 - -
55,145 60,857 © 2,743 S
37,179 521 1,495 54,876
$ 5,851,721 $ 1,090,752 § 3,625,985 $ 1,653,401
$ 158,159 7,381 $ 442,381 $ 550,657
839,436 49,587 10,117 -
- - - 1,185
4,076 661 1,065 -
1,630,518 447,539 1,832,639 105,443
} 2,632,189 505,162/5 2,286,202 657,285
55,145 60,857 2,743 -
37,179 521 1,495 54,876
145,807 1,150 504 983,284
2,981,401 - - -
- 523,056 1,335,041 -
- - - (42,044)
3,219,532 585,584 1,339,783 996,116
'$ 5,851,721 $ 1,090,752 $ 3,625,985 $ 1,653,401
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Total
Govemmgntal Governmental

Funds - Funds
$ 3,134,554 $ 9,676,960
- 2,980,452
- 1,328,656
- 13,180
22,252 173,967
118,784 118,784
19,349 20,883
67,041 399,333
- 2,192
43,644 700,260
19,992 138,737
1,003 95,074
$ 3,426,619 $ 15,648,478
$ 91,662 $ 1,250,240
43,649 ' 942,789
- 1,185
1,649 7451
96,347 4,112,486
233,307 6,314,151
19,992 138,737
1,003 95,074
121,086 1,251,831
- 2,981,401
2,622,429 4,480,526
428,802 386,758
3,193,312 9,334,327
$ 3,426,619 $ 15,648,478

CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL

GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO NET

ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
DECEMBER 31, 2001

Total governmental fund balances

Amounts reported for governmental

activities in the statement of net assets
are different because: ’
Capital assets used in governmental
activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to
pay for current-period expenditures and
therefore are deferred in the funds:
Income taxes receivable
Other taxes and intergovernmental receivable

Other receivables

Internal service funds are used to charge
the costs of certain activities, such as the
central garage, to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service
funds are included in governmental activities
in the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable,
are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore not reported in the funds:

Bonds and notes payable
Compensated absences
Unfunded police and fire pension liability

Accrued interest on long-term debt

Net assets of governmental activities

-17 -
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9,334,327

22,937,746

1,832,214
684,410
403,118

1,091,649

(2,585,000)
(944,429)
- (385,042)

(10,233)

$

32,358,760




CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

- REVENUES:
‘Local taxes - -
Intergovernmental revenues
Special assessments
Charges for services
Fines, licenses and permits
Investment income
Mlscellaneous receipts and relmbursements

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Security of persons & property
Health
Transportation
Community environment
Leisure time activities
Basic utility services

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges

" Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in

Sale of fixed assets
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year
Fund balances, end of year

“See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Street Repair
& Municipal Capital
Maintenance Income Tax Improvement
General Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 1354087 $ - $ 9735102 $ -
1,502,694 823,932 ' - 11,000
202,910 - - -
569,944 - - -
364,294 - - -
722,946 - - -
133,856 85,227 ‘82 41,759
4,850,731 909,159 9,735,184 52,759
1,626,537 - 283,755 -
‘8,836,704 - - -
© 80,380 - - -
- 891,527 - -
848,744 - - -
1,044,188 - - -
133,098 - - 3,759,532
- - - 100,000
- - - 114,923
12,569,651 - 891,527 283,755 3,974,455
(7,718,920) 17,632 9,451,429 (3,921,696)
8,430,407 60,000 - 2,535,173
21,262 . 125 - -
(835,240} - (10,538,009 -
7,616,429 60,125 (10,538,009) 2,535,173
(102,49-1) 77,757 (1,086,580) (1,386,523)
3,322,023 507,827 2,426,363 2,382,639
$ 3,219,532 $ 585584 $ 1,339,783 $ 996,116

-18-




-19-

CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO C
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds - $ (3,212,664)
" Non-major Total _
Governmental Governmental Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Funds _ Funds Activities are different because: ’
$ - $ 11,089,189 Governmental funds report.capital outlays as expenditures.
1,294,670 - 3,632,296 However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
42,832 245,742 is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
139,389 709,333 expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
65,143 429,437 depreciation in the current period. 3,695,502
100,744 823,690 - .
65,346 326,270 In the statement of activities, only the gain.on the sale of fixed
’ ' assets is repoxted, whereas in the governmental funds, the
1,708,124 17,255,957 proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the
change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by
the cost of the asset sold. (327,316)
54,865 1,965,157 Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
283,728 9,120,432 current financial resources are not reported as revenues in
161,851 242231 the funds: .
329,861 1,221,388 -~ Income taxes 978,498
66,946 915,690 Interest revenue (35,415)
- 1,044,188 ‘Other revenue | 29,958
159,406 159,406 Contribution of capital assets 3,337,765
'1,236,327 5,128,957 - Grant paid directly to contractor for capital assets 845,000
20,000 120,000 Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the
7,296 122,219 governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. 120,000
2,320,280 20,039,668
“Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not-
_ require the use of current financial resources and therefore are
(612,156) (2,783,711) not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. :
) Vacation and sick leave beneﬁts (61,358)
Interest payable 434
334,900 11,360,480 Unfunded pension liability 4,658
- 21,387 o
(437.571) (11,810,820) Internal service funds are used by management to charge the
. costs of certain activities, such as the central garage, to
(102,671 (428,953) individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal
- service funds related to governmental activities is reported
(714,827) (3,212,664) with governmental activities. (165,038)
3,908,139 12,546,991 Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 5,210,024
$ 3,193,312 $ . 9,334,327



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Total net assets from above
Net assets of business-type activities

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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21,014,067

$ 20992.944

BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
Business-type Activities Governmental
Non-major . Activities -
Solid Enterprise Internal Service
‘Water Sewer Waste Funds Totals : Funds
ASSETS
Current assets: -
Pooled cash and investments -$ 7 1,190,289 $ 8,759,664 373,559 $ 54,555 $ 10,378,067 $ 742,042
Receivables (net): _ )
Accounts - 515,879 594,356 73,189 12,286 1,195,710 -
Interest ' 20,744 41,931 - - 62,675 6,361
Other s - - - 6,493 6,493 14,002
Inventory | L 207,832 30,627 - 16,408 254,867 21,546
Due from other funds B - - R - T 8,673
. Prepaid items > 10,976 130,433 - 1,335 . 142,744 29,022
Total current assets 1,945,720 9,557,011 446,748 91,077 12,040,556 821,646
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Capital assets not subject to depreciation: ) ’
- Land - 143,179 62,820 11,340 309,265 526,604 -
Construction in progress - - 809,183 - - 809,183 -
Capital assets net of -
accumulated depreciation 6,844,565 12,427,791 5,250 1,397,827 20,675,433 638,576
Total noncurrent assets 6,987,744 13,299,794 16,590 1,707,092 22,011,220 638,576
Total assets . $ 8933464  § 22,856,805 463,338 $ 1,798,169 $ 34,051,776 $ 1,460,222
LIABILITIES
* Current liabilities: . : .
Accounts payable $ 98,720 $ 469912 55,050 $ 17,117 $ 640,799 $ 277,307
Salaries and benefits payable 101,422 63,826 8,442 564 174,254 31,821
Due to other funds 1,768 982 584 42 3,376 38
Due to agency fund . 1,829 - - - 1,829 -
Current portion of long term debt 250,000 - 525,000 [ - 775,000 -
Deferred revenue - Co- 131,418 6,493 137,911 18,845
Accrued interest payable ) 8,464 58.544 - - 67,008 - -
Total current labilities _ 462,203 1,118,264 195,494 24,216 1,800,177 328,011
Noncurrent liabilities: .
Noncurrent portion of long term debt . 1,000,000 9,925,000 .- - 10,925,000 -
Compensated absences ' 238,780 67,213 6,539 - 312,532 61,685
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,238,780 9,992,213 6,539 - - 11,237,532 61,685
Total liabilities $ 1,700,983 $ 11,110,477 202,033 3 24,216 $ 13,037,709 $ 389,696
NET ASSETS '
Invested in-capital assets, net of :
related debt ’ $ 5,737,744 $ 9,125,453 - 16,590 $ 1,707,092 $ 16,586,879 $ 638,576
Unrestricted 1,494,737 2,620,875 244,715 66,861 4,427,188 431,950
Total net assets 7,232,481 11,746,328 261,305 1,773,953 21,014,067 1,070,526
Total liabilities and net assets $ 8,933,464 $_ 22,856,805 463,338 $ 1,798,169 $ 34,051,776 $ 1,460,222



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

‘STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

INFUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS . .
-FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Other revenue

Total opemﬁng revenues
- OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services
Operations and maintenance
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income
Intergovernmental
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (}oss) before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning of year; as restated

Total net assets - end of year

Adjustment to reflect the. consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Business-type Activities Governmental
: Non-major -Activities -
Solid Enterprise . Internal Service
Water Sewer Waste Funds Totals ~ Funds
$ 2,645,040 $ 2,793,708 $ 636,986 $ 205,998 $ 6,281,732 $ 1,872,489
190,313 9,719 18 7,129 207,179 13,785
2,835,353 2,803,427 637,004 213,127 6,488,911 1,886,274
1,220,387 -790,899 123,460 53,012 2,187,758 387,117
912,412 673,588 768,056 187,862 2,541,918 1,728,251
315,239 - 641,698 15,505 46,421 1,018,863 42,878
2,448,038 2,106,185 907,021 287,295 5,748,539 2,158,246
387,315 - 697,242 (270,017) (74,1v68) 740,372 (271,972)
91,855 160,057 - - 251,912 28,263
- 132,059 29,800 - 161,859 -
475 (16,837) (6,848) - (23,210) (3,957
(120,183) (182,085) - - (302,268) -
(27,853) 93,194 1 22952 . - 88,293 24,306
359,462 790,436 (247,065) (74,168) 828,665 (247,666)
- 1,423 - 281,090 282,513 21,162
250,000 - 165,340 ~ 35,000 450,340 -
609,462 791,859 (81,725) 241,922 1,561,518 - (226,504)
6,623,019 10,954,469 343,030 1,532,031 1,297,030
$ 7,232,481 $ 11,746,328 $ 261,305 . $1,773,953 $ 1,070,526
~ (61465
$ 1500053

Change in net assets of business-type activities

‘See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from interfund services
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers-in
Intergovernmental

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of assets
Proceeds from the sale of capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

financing activities B

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments
Net unrealized gain on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Pooled cash and investments, beginning of year

Pooled cash and investments, end of year

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

- (continued)

Business-type Activities Governmental
Non-major Activities -
Solid Enterprise Internal Service
Water Sewer Waste Funds Totals Funds
$ 2,808,898 $ 2,735,933 $ 759,125 $ 209,224 $ 6,513,180 $ -
- - - - - 1,941,936
(874,685) (250,529) (821,915) (188,713) (2,135,842) (1,644,728)
(1,174,079) (765,522) (121,295) (52,951) (2,113,847) (401,433)
(1,859) (80,255) (375) - (470 (82,959) (120)
758.275 1,639,627 (184,460) (32,910 2,180,532 -(104,345)
250,000 - 165,340 35,000 450,340 -
- 132,059 29,800 - 161,859 -
250,000 132,059 - 195,140 35,000 612,199 -
(438,696) -(1,097,478) - - (1,536,174) (3,065)
475 - - - 475 -
- 7,142,337 - - 7,142,337 -
-(250,000) (915,724) - - (1,165,724) -
(121,875) (155,286) - - (277,161) -
(810,096) 4,973,849 - - 4,163,753 (3,065)
76,805 129,092 - - 205,807 25,011
10,451 18,861 - . 29,312 4,100
87,256 147,953 - - 235,209 29,111
285,435 6,893,488 10,680 237,299 7,191,693 (78,299)
904,854 1,866,176 362,879 52,465 3.186,374 820,341
$ 1,190,289 $ 8,759,664 $ 373,559 $ 289,764 $ 10,378,067 $ 742,042
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

- PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Business-type Activities . Governmental
Non-major Activities -
: Solid Enterprise Internal Service
Water Sewer - Waste Funds Totals Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 387315  $§ 697,242 $ (270017) $ (74,168) $ 740,372 $ (271,972)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) R
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: .
Depreciation ) 315,239 641,698 15,505 46,421 1,018,863 42,878
Change in assets and liabilities: . ’ : ’
Accounts receivable ) (24.833) ~- (31,902) 83,382 (3,903) 22,744 -
. Other receivables 11,303 6,801 1,361 315 19,780 22,044
Due from other funds - - - - : - 20,693
Prepaid items ' (549) (36.,139) - 403 . (36,285) (4,966)
Inventory . : (34,400) (164) - (1,282) - (35,846) . 8,844
- Accounts payable 72,676 381,334 (53,859) (410) 399,741 ‘ 79,501
Salaries and benefits payable and o . )
compensated absences 46, 308' 25,377 2,165 61 73,911 i (14,316)
Due to other governments .- - - .(32) (32) -
Due to other funds - (1,859) 2,227) - (375) - (4,461) .24
Deferred revenue - (12,925) (42,393) 37,378 (315) (18.255) 12,925
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 758,275 $ 1,639,627 $ (184460) $ (32910) § 2,180,532 3 (104,345)
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities: :
Contributions of capital assets from government $ - $ - $ - $ 281,090 $ 281,090 3 15,910

See Notes to-the Basic Financial Statements. ' -
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 7 ’
DECEMBER 31, 2001
Agency
Funds
ASSETS : :
Pooled cash and investments ' $ - 125,839
* Accounts receivable ' » 6,498
Due from other funds 1,829
Total assets | | $ 134,166
LIABILITIES _
Due to employees -8 ‘865
Due to other funds : ) . ) 52,434
Due to other governments : _ 45,277
Undistributed monies ' , v 35.590
Total liabilities A V 3 134,166

"See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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~CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2001

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Sidney, Ohio (City) is a political unit incorporated and established for the purposé of
exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the constitution and laws of the State of
Ohio.

The City was incorporated in 1820, and has a Council-Manager form of government. The City
provides' the following services: public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, water,
sewer, sanitation, recreation, pubhc 1mprovements, planning and zoning and general
administrative services.

For financial reporting purposes, the City includes in this report all funds, account groups,

agencies, boards, commissions, and departments in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 criteria for determining the entity and component
units. Under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14, the City of Sidney is the primary
government, since it is a special purpose government that has a separate elected governing body;
functions as a separate legal entity; and is fiscally independent of other state and local
governments. As used in GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally independent means that the City
may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or modify its
own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue debt. As required by generally
accepted accounting principles, these basic financial statements present the government and its
component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the

‘government’s operations and so data is combined with data of the primary government. Each

discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate column in the
combined financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the government. There.

-are no blended or discretely presented component units at December 31, 2001. -

Certain units of local governments, over which the City exercises no authority, such as. the
Shelby County Library District, Shelby County Health District and Upper Valley Joint
Vocational School, are other local governmental and non-profit entities with independent elected
officials and are excluded from the accompanying basic financial statements. The City is not a
component unit of any other entity and does not have any component units, which require
inclusion in the basic financial statements.

Several other local governments and non-profit entities that overlap the .City's boundaries are
Shelby County and the Sidney City School District. These entities do not meet the reporting
entity criteria and, therefore, are not included in the City's financial reports.

. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide financial statements
The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City as a

whole. These statements distinguish between activities that are governmental in nature, which
are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues; and business-type activities,
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
P December 31, 2001

which rely to a significant extent upon fees and charges for support. Interfund and internal
service fund activities are generally eliminated to avoid the “doubling-up” effect on revenues
and expenses. The government-wide financial statements do not include the assets and liabilities
of the City’s agency funds.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is mcurred regardless of
the timing of related cash flows.

The govemment—wide statement of activities presents a comparison between expenses and
program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each
governmental program. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or
services as well as grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues not classified as program revenues are
presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the
extent to which each program or business-type segment is self-supportmg or relies upon general
revenues of the City.

The caption “Capital assets, net of related debt” consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attrlbutable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints placed upon their use are either: 1)
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments, or 2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. The net assets restricted for other purposes result from spemal revenue
funds and the restrictions on their net asset use. When both restricted and non-restricted
resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy touse non-restricted resources first, then
resmcted resources, as they are needed.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for govemmental funds proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental and proprietary funds are reported in separate
columns in the fund financial statements. All other funds are aggregated and reported as non-
major governmental or non-major proprietary funds.

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the City conform to generally
accepted accounting principles for local governments as prescribed by the GASB.
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. ‘The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and
expenditures (expenses). Fund accounting segregates funds according to the intended purpose
and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with financial-related legal and
contractual provisions.
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
' December 31, 2001

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through Wthh most governmental functions typically are
financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the City’s expendable financial resources and the
related current liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary and non-expendable trust
funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The City reports the following major
governmental funds: :

General Fund - The General Fund is used to account for government resources not

accounted for in any other fund. The General Fund balance is available to the City for any

purpose provided it is expended or transferred accordmg to the City Charter and/or the
- general laws of the State of Ohio.

- Street Repair and Maintenance Fund — To account for state-levied and controlled gasoline
tax and motor vehicle registration fees designated for street maintenance and repair.

Municipal Income Tax Fund - To account for the collection, collection costs and
distribution of City-levied income tax.

'Capit'al Improvement Fund — To account for the income tax resources earmarked for capital
_improvements used for general improvement of all City facilities and operations.

_ Proprietary (Business-type) Funds

The propnetary funds are used to account for the C1ty s ongoing activities that are similar to

" those found in the private sector where the intent of the goveming body is that the cost
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges..

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: ‘

Water Fund — Accounts for the operation of the waterworks distribution system and related
expenses, including capital improvement and debt service. The operation is exclusively
financed by customer user charges.

Sewer Fund — Accounts for the operation of the sanitary sewer collection and treatment
system and related expenses, including capital improvement and debt service. The operation .
is excluswely financed by customer user charges.

Solid Waste Fund - Accounts for the operation of the solid waste collection system and
related expenses, including capital improvements. The operations are financed through user
charges and a subsidy from the General Fund.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds — account for services, such as information management and vehicle
~ maintenance, provided to other departments of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Agency funds — generally are used to account for assets held in a fiduciary capacity on
behalf of others. :
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
. December 31, 2001

. C. Basis of Accounting

Governmental Funds. The accounting and financial reporting treatment that applies to a fund is
determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds are accounted for using a current

- financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and
current liabilities are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (1 e., expenditures and other
financing uses) in current financial resources.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for all governmental fund types. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to.accrual (i.e.,
when they become both measurable and available). "Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be reasonably determined and "available” means collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City
considers revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest of general long-
term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in
- the debt service fund for payments to be made early in the following year.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments,
licenses, interest revenue and charges for services. Fines, permits and parking meter revenues
are not susceptible to-accrual because they are generally not measurable until received in cash.

The City reports deferred revenues on its governmental funds’ balance sheet. Deferred revenues
arise when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available" criteria for
recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the City receives resources
before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue Trecognition criteria are met,
or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed
from the combined-balance sheet and revenue is recogmzed

Because governmental funds’ financial statements use a different measurement focus and basis
of accounting than the government-wide statements, governmental funds’ financial statements
include reconciliations to the government-wide statements.

Proprietary Funds. All proprietary funds — enterprise funds and internal service funds - are
accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement
focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the
balance sheet.

Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e.,
expenses) in net total assets. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses
from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary funds. Under this method, revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
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. CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2001

- Agency Funds. The agency funds, being custodial in nature, are merely "assets equal liabilities"
and, thus, do not involve the measurement of results of operations. Agency funds are accounted
for using the accrual basis of accounting.

. .Budgets ~and Budgem Accountilig

The City follows procedures prescribed by State law in establishing the budgetary data reflected
in the financial statements as follows:

(1)  The City must submit a tax budget of estimated cash réceipts and beginning—of—year cash
fund balances for all funds to the County Budget Commission by July 20 of each year for
~ the following year, January 1 through December 31.

(2) The County Budget Commission certifies its actions by September 1 and issues an Official
Certificate of Estimated Resources, (the "Certificate") limiting the maximum amount the
" City may expend from a given fund during the year to the estimated resources available.

(3) About January 1, the Certificate is amended to reflect the actual unencumbered balances
from the preceding year. The City must prepare its appropriations so that the total
contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year will not exceed the
amount stated in the initial or amended Certificate.

@ A temp()rafy appropriation measuré mély be passed to éontrol cash disbursements for the

period January 1 through March 31. Before April 1, a permanent-appropriation measure

must be passed for the period January 1 through December 31. The budget identifies
specific expenditure amounts by character for each division within each fund.

(5) Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end. No contract, agreement or other

" obligation involving the expenditure of money shall be entered into unless the Director of
Finance first certifies that the money required for such contract, agreement, obligation or
expenditure is in the treasury, or is anticipated to come into the treasury, before the
maturity of such contract.

(6)  All funds of the City have annual budgets legally adopted by the City Council.

The City Manager acts as budget officer for the City and submits a proposed operating budget to
the City Council on an annual basis. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. The
Council enacts the budget through passage of an ordinance. The appropriations ordinance
controls expenditures at the level of (1) personal services and (2) contractual, materials and
other. Council can amend the budget at functional expense lines, through the passage of
supplemental ordinances. Management can amend appropriations below this level without
council approval Supplemental appropriations to the original appropriations ‘ordinance were
made during the year, but were not material in relation to the original appropriations.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for

the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary control in the governmental
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2001

-~ funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservatlons of fund balances,
since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

While reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund balances on the
basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis, as provided by
law, is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts and
dlsbursements

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -
Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis for the general fund and major special revenue funds are presented
on “the budgetary basis in the Required Supplementary Information to provide a meaningful
-comparison of actual results with the budget. The major dlfferences between the budget basis
and the GAAP basis are that: »

(1) Revenues are reeorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when they are both
measurable and available (GAAP).

(2 Expendltures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when the 11ab111ty is
incurred (GAAP).

(3) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as opposed to a
reservation of fund balance (GAAP).

. "Cash and Cash Equivalents

To enable more efficient cash management, cash received by the City is pooled. Monies for all
funds, including proprietary funds, are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is

" maintained through City records. Each fund’s interest in the pool is presented as “Pooled Cash
and Investments” on the balance sheet.

All investments of the City are recorded at fair value, in accordance with GASB Statement No.
31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment
Pools.” The statement established accounting and reporting guidelines for government
investments and investment pools. Certain investments that were reported: at cost in previous
years may now be reported at fair value. Interest earnings from investments are allocated to the
General Fund except for funds derived from contract, trust agreement, grant terms or City
ordinance WhICh require credltmg otherw1se

For purposes of the statements of cash flows and for presentation on the statement of net -

assets/balance sheet, investments with an original maturity of three months or less and
investments of the cash management pool are considered to be cash equivalents.

. Inventory and Prepaid Items

Inventory is valued at cost using the first-in/first out (FIFO) method. The proprietary funds'
inventories are recorded as expenses when used. Inventory in governmental funds consists of
expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time
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individual inventory items are purchased. Reported inventories are offset by a fund balance
reserve, which indicates they do not constitute "available spendable resources,” and .are not
available for appropriations.

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2001 are

recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method by recording a current asset for .the
prepaid amount and reflecting the expenditure/expense in the year in which it was consumed.

G. Insurance and Risk

The City of Sidney covers most of its risks of loss through commercml insurance. Effective
January 1, 1990, the City began a partially self-funded health plan. The City funds the .
maximum liability, which is equal to the City’s aggregate stop loss plus the insurance companies’
premium and administrative costs. During 2001, the City incurred claims of $958,097. The
City plans to use any excess funds to contain health coverage costs. )

‘H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental - or business-type columns in the government-wide financial statements. Also
included in capital assets are infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar
items) constructed or acquired on or after January 1, 2000. Pursuant to GASB Statement No.
34, for all fiscal years beginning after June-15, 2006, the City must retroactively report all
governmental infrastructure assets acquired before January 1, 2000. The City expects to
accomplish retroactive reportmg of infrastructure pnor to that deadline.

The Clty defines capital assets as assets with an initial, md1v1dual cost of more than $2 500 and
an estimated useful life in excess of one year. :

Al capltal assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost, if actual cost is not
available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at the time
received. Interest on constructed capital assets is capitalized. '

When capital assets are purchased, they are capitalized and depreciated in the government-wide
statements and the proprietary fund statements. Capital assets are recorded as expenditures of
the current penod in the governmental fund financial statements.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
~ assets. Estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows:

: Estimated Useful
Description Life (In Years
Land improvements , 20t0 25
Buildings and improvements 20 to 40
Machinery and equipment 2t025

Infrastructure 231043
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L.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs for proprietary funds are deferred and amortized over the terms of the bonds
using methods that approximate the effective interest method. Issuance costs at December 31,
2001 amounted to $183,086 net of accumulated amortization of $106,780. These costs are
included in prepaid items in the accompanying financial statements.

Compensated Absences

City employee's are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of
termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation and sick leave at various rates.

Vested vacation and sick leave-is recorded as an expense in the government-wide statements for
the period in which such leave was eamned. For governmental fund type employees, an
expenditure is recorded in the governmental funds’ statements for only the portion of vested
vacation and sick leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available resources.

Payment of vacation and sick leave recorded in the government-wide financial statements is
dependent upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable.
Management believes that sufficient resources will be made available when payment is due.

Pensions

The provision for pension costs are recorded when the related payroll is accrued and the
obligation is incurred. '

Reserves and Designations

Reserves are portions of fund equity that are not appmpriable for expenditures/expenses-or that -
are legally restricted to a specific future use, or both. :

Designations -are tentative plans for financial resource use in a future period. Such plans or
intentions are subject to change. They may never be legally authorized or result in expenditures.

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues

Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental receivables and revenues when entitlement occurs. All other reimbursement-
type .grants are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when the related
expenditures are incurred.

Financial Disclosure
Private-sector standards of accounting and reporting issues on or before November 30, 1989, are
followed .in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent

that those. standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board.
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- O. Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenditure/expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pooled Cash and Investments: .

‘The City maintains a cash deposit and investment pool for all funds. Each fund’s share of cash
deposits and investments is shown separately on the combined balance sheet as "pooled cash and
investments." Cash and cash equivalents shown in the combined balance sheets include mutual
funds, obhgatlons of Umted States Government Agencies and certificates of deposit with maturities
of three months or less when purchased. For disclosure under Government Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 3 (GASB 3), all certificates of deposit are included under the captlon "cash
deposits" and the remaining cash equivalents are included under the caption "investments.” Income
accrued on cash deposits and investments are shown collectively by fund on the combmed balance
sheet as "accrued interest receivable.”

Deposits - At December 31, 2001, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $6,551,889 and the
bank balance was $6,360,943. Of the bank balance:

1. $701,415 was covered by federal depository insurance; and _
2. $5,659,528 was covered by collateral held by financial institutions not in the City's name or

by single financial institution collateralized pools held in the financial institution’s name as
- specified by Section 135.181 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC).

The State of Ohio by statute has established collateral requirements for financial institutions acting
as public depositories. The public depositories must either pledge specific qualified securities with a
market value of at least equal to 102% of the total amount of all public deposits to be secured, or
pledge a pool of collateral with a market value of at least 105% of the total amount of public deposits
secured. Pooled securities so pledged provide the equivalent of a deposit insurance fund. This
approach protects all publicentities against a single public depository collapse. The state has
implemented collateral pools to minimize the 1nterest penalty to public entities for protecting public
deposits.

Investments - The ORC, the City's charter; and the City’s investment policy authorize the City to

invest in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROMio), certificates of deposit, repurchase
agreements, United States treasury bills and notes, United States agency and instrumentality notes,
bankers' acceptances and commercial paper of the highest rating. The above legislative investment
policy applies to all funds, fund types and component units. All deposits are made to authorized
public depositories and contracts with such institutions are in accordance with the ORC and the
City's charter. All investments are reported at fair value which is based on quoted market prices.
The City invests in STAROhio, an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office which
allows governments within the state to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAROhio is not
registered with the Securities Exchange Commission as an investment company, but does operate in
a manner similar to Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The State operates the pool
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a manner similar to Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The State operates the pool
in accordance with ORC Section 135.45. Investments in STAROhio are valued at STAROhio’s
share price which is the price the investment could be sold for on December 31, 2001.

GASB 3 requires government entities to categorize investments to give an indication of the level of
risk assumed by the entity at year end. These categories are as follows: Category 1 includes
investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the City or its agent
in the City's name. Category 2 includes investments that are uninsured and unregistered for which
the securities are held by the counterparty in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured or
unregistered investments for which securities are held by the counterparty or by their trust
department or agent but not in the City's name. Pooled and mutual funds are not required to be
categorized by GASB 3.

A summary of the fair value of investments held at December 31, 2001, and an indication of the
related risk is as follows:

Fair Risk
Description : Value Category
Government securities $ 8,970,145 Category 3
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool 5,275.035 Unclassified
$142 0

Due to significantly higher cash flows at certain times during the year, the City's investment in
overnight repurchase agreements for which the underlying securities were held by the bank increased
significantly (Category 3). As a result, the amounts that were in Category 3 at those times were
substantially higher than at year end.

The classification of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the basic financial statements is
based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9 (GASB 9). Cash equivalents are defined as
investments with an original maturity of three months. or less. Reconciliation between the
classification of cash and investments on the basic financial statements and the classification per
GASB Statement 3 is as follows:

Cash and cash
equivalents Investments
GASB 9 $ 20,797,069 $ -
Investments:
Government securities (8,970,145) 8,970,145
STAROhio (5.275.035) 5.275.035
GASB 3 ' $ 6,551,889 $ 14,245,180
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Income Taxes:

Municipalities within the State of Ohio are permitted by.-state statute to levy an income tax up to a
maximum rate of 1% subject to the approval of the local legislative body. Any rate in excess of 1%
requires the approval of a majority of the eligible voters residing within the municipal corporation.
The City of Sidney levies a permanent 1.5% tax on all wages, salaries, commissions and other
compensation paid by employers and the net profits from a business or professional person earned
within the City, excluding income from intangible personal property. In addition, City residents pay
City income tax on income earned outside the City, net of a credit for income taxes paid to other
municipalities. '

- Property Taxes:

Property taxes are levied against all real, public utlhty and tangible (used in business) property
located in the Clty

~ Revenues from property taxes are used by the City pursuant to state statutes for General Fund
operations and as a partial provision for payment of accrued pohce and fire pension costs.

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 1% (10 mills) of
assessed value without a vote of the people. Under current procedures, the City’s share is 0.320%
(3.2 mills) of assessed value, including .6 mills to fund the police and fire unfunded pension hablhty

Real property and public utility taxes collected during 2001 were levied on December 31, 2000 c')n '
assessed values listed as of January 1, 2000, the lien date. One-half of these taxes were due on
February 14, 2001, with the remaining balance due on July 20, 2001.

‘ Tangible personal property taxes collected during 2001 had a 'levy date of December 31, 2000. One-
half of these taxes were due between February 14, 2001, and Apnl 30, 2001, with the remaining
balance due on October 20, 2001.

Assessed values of real property are established by State law at 35% of appraised market value. A
revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less than every six years with equalization
adjustments in the third year following reappraisal. The last revaluation was completed in 1999.
Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property as well as land and
improvements at true value (50% of cost). Tangible personal property assessments are 25% of true
value. The assessed value for 2000 upon which the 2001 levy was based was approxunately
$410,154,105. The assessed value for 2001 uwpon which the 2002 1evy wxll be based is
approximately $418,557,164. .

The Shelby Couhty Treasurer collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts, including'the
City of Sidney. The County Auditor periodically remits to the City its portion of taxes collected.
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Capital Assets:

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2001 was as follows: -

Governmental activities:
' Beginning Ending
Balance - Increases Decreases -Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated: h ‘
Land : $ 1,504,645 $ 711,656 $ - $ 2,216,301
Construction in progress 859,749 - (363.813) 495,936
Subtotal " ' 2,364,394 711,656 .= _(363.813) 2,712,237
Capital assets being depreciated: _
Buildings and improvements 8,787,849 388,979 - 9,176,828
Machinery and equipment 6,561,606 807,884 (375,063) 6,994,427
General infrastructure . 3.162.716 7,155,864 - '10,318.580
Subtotal - . - 18,512,171 8,352,727 (375.063) 26.489.835
Totals at historical cost 20,876,565 9,064,383 (738.876) 29,202,072
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements - 1,586,157 183,903 - 1,770,060
Machinery and equipment 3,215,546 641,834 (217,522) 3,639,858
General infrastructure 20,029 195,803 - 215.832
Total accumulated depreciation 4,821,732 1,021,540 (217.522) 5,625,750

Net capital assets $16,054.833 $8042,843 $(521.354) $23.576322

~ Depreciation was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General government : , $ 53,771
.~ Security of persons and property ‘ 437,897
Health , 19,415
Transportation ', 312,665
" Community environment ' 11,885
Leisure time activities _ 110,184
Basic utility services - - 22310
Total governmental activities depreciation expense - $968,127

The above difference between increases in accumulated depreciation and the depreciation charged to
governmental activities is atiributable to (1) the portion of Internal Service funds’ depreciation
allocable to business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and (2) accumulated depreciation
of assets transferred from business-type activities to governmental activities during the year ended

December 31, 2001.
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Business-type activities: _
Beginning
Balance, as » Ending
Restated Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets not being deprec1ated '
Land - $ 526,604 $ - 8 - § 526,604
Construction in progress 279.261 627,341 (97.419) 809,183
Subtotal _ 805.865 627,341 (97.419) 1,335.787
Capital assets being depreciated: '
Buildings, improvements and
infrastructure 29,455,419 1,188,260 - 30,643,679
Machinery and equipment 6,263,597 99.081 - _(14,152) 6.348,526
Subtotal 35,719.016 1.287.341 (14,152)  36.992.205
Totals at historical cost 36,524,881 1914682  (111.571) 38.327.992
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings, improvements and _ ,
infrastructure - 10,543,086 748,343 - 11,291,429
Machinery and equipment 4,746,711 284,049 (5.417) 5.025.343
Total accumulated depreciation 15.289.797 1,032,392 (5417) 16,316,772
Net capital assets - $21.235.084 $ 882290 $(106,154) $22.011.220

Depreciation was charged to business-type activities as follows:

Water $ 315,239
Sewer 641,698
Solid waste 15,505
Airport 23,244
Swimming Pool 23,177

Total businéss-type activities depreciation expense '$1.018,863

Beginning balances have been restated to reflect infrastructure held within the Water and Sewer
Funds See Note 11 for additional d1sclosures ' ' :

The above difference between increases in accumulated depreciation and the depreciation charged to
business-type activities is attributable to the accumulated depreciation of assets transferred from
governmental activities to business-type activities during the year ended December 31, 2001.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans:

Both the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund and the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio
are reported using GASB  Statement No. 27 “Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers”. Substantially all City employees are covered by one of the two cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans, namely, the Ohio Police and Fire
Pension Fund or the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio.
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Public Employees Retirement System

The City of Sidney participates in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter
145 of the Ohio Revised Code. PERS issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written request to PERS, 277 East Town Street,
Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling (614) 466-2085 or 1-800-222-PERS (7377).

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory. authority for employee and employer contributions.
The employee contribution rate is 8.5% for employees other than law enforcement. In January
2001, House Bill 416 divided the PERS law enforcement prograrm into two separate divisions with
separate employee contributions rates and benefits. The law enforcement classification consisted
of sheriffs, deputy sheriffs and township police with an employee contribution rate of 10.1%. All
other members of the PERS law enforcement program were placed in a newly named public safety
division and continued to contribute at 9%.

The 2001 employer contribution rate was 13.55% of covered payroll. The 2001 employer
contribution rate for both the law enforcement and public safety divisions was 16.70% of covered
payroll. The City’s contributions, representing 100% of employer’ contributions for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 were $703,560, $652,273, and $691,875, respectively.

Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

The City of Sidney contributes to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OP&F), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined pension plan. OP&F provides retirement and disability benefits, cost-
of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions
are established by the Ohio State Legislature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised
Code. OP&F issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial information and
required supplementary information for the plan. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a
written request to OP&F, 140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164.

Plan members are required to contribute 10.0% of their annual covered salary, while employers are
required to contribute 19.5% and 24.0% respectively for police officers and firefighters. The
City’s contributions to OP&F for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were
$846,536, $795,876, and $764,493, respectively, equal to the required contribution for each year.

The City also makes payments to OP&F for its portion of past service cost determined at the time
the fund was established in the mid-1930’s. As of December 31, 2001, the unfunded liability is
payable, including principal and interest, in annual instaliments for $21,672 through the year 2035.
The principal balance of $385,042 is accounted for as a noncurrent liability in the governmental
activities column of the Statement of Net Assets. The State of Ohio assumed the liability for past
service cost at the time PERS was established. '
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Postemployment Benefits:

A. Public Employees Retirement System

The Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS) provides postretirement health care

" coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit.
Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is available. The
health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each
employer’s contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of post retirement health care.
The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions. For local
government employer units the rate was 13.55% of covered payroll; 4.30% was the portion
that was used to fund health care for the year. The 2001 employee rate was 16.70% and 4.3%
was used to fund health care for both law enforcement and pubhc safety divisions.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund
postretlrement health care through their contnbutlons to PERS.

Actuarial Review: The following assumptions and calculations were based on PERS’ latest
Actuarial Review as of December 31, 2000.

Funding Method: An entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in
determining the present value of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual
experience (actuarial gains and losses) becomes part of the unfunded actuarial accrued
" liability. '

Assets Valuation Method: All investments are carried at market value. For actuarial
valuation purposes, a smoothed market approach is used. Under this approach, assets are
adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unreahzed market appreciation or deprecmtlon on
mvestment assets. :

Investment Return: The investment assumption rate for 2000 was 7.75%.

~ Active Employee Total Payroll: An annual increase of 4.75% compounded annually, is the
base portion of the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in the number
of active employees. Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the 4.75% base
increase, were assumed to range from 0.54% to 5.1%.

Health Care: Health care costs were assumed to increase 4.75% annually.
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The OPEB’s are advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis. The number of active
contributing participants was 411,076. The portion of City’s contributions that were used to
fund postemployment benefits was $223,240. $11,735.9 million represents the actuarial value
of the Retirement System’s net assets available for OPEB at December 31, 2000. The
actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, based on the actuarial
cost method used, were $14,364.6 million and $2,628.7 million, respectively.

In January 2001, House Bill 416 divided the PERS law enforcement program into two
separate divisions with separate employee contribution rates and benefits. The law
enforcement classification consisted of sheriffs, deputy sheriffs and township police with an
employee contribution rate of 10.1%. All other members of the PERS law enforcement
program were placed in a newly named public safety division and continue to contribute at
9%. The employer contribution rate for both the law enforcement and public safety divisions
is 16.70%. Law enforcement officer benefits permit age and service retirement at an earlier
age with a different formula than for PERS members not covered under this division.

. ‘ Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

" The Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OP&F) provides postretirement health care coverage
to any person who receives or is eligible to receive a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or
eligible dependent child of such persons. An eligible dependent child is any child under the
age of eighteen whether or not the child is attending school or under the age of twenty-two if
attending full-time or on a 2/3 basis. The Ohio Revised Code provides the authority allowing
the OP&F’s Board of Trustees to provide health care coverage and states that health care cost
paid from the fund shall be included in the employer’s contribution rate. The total police
employer contribution is 19.5% of covered payroll and the total ﬁrefighters employer
contribution rate is 24% of covered payroll.

* Health care funding and accounting is on a pay-as-you go basis. A percentage of covered
payroll, as defined by the Board, is used to pay retiree health care expenses. The Board
defined allocation was 7.25% and 7.50% of covered payroll in 2000 and 2001, respectively.
" The allocation is 7.75% in 2002. In addition, since July 1, 1992, most retirees have been
required to contribute a portion of the cost of their health care coverage through a deduction
" from their monthly benefit payment. '

The statewide number of participants eligible to receive health care benefits as of December
31, 2000, the date of the last actuarial valuation available, was 12,853 for p011ce and 10 037
for firefighters. The City’s ~annual contribution for 2001 that were used to fund
postemployment benefits was $151,077 for police and $142,142 for firefighters. The fund’s
total health care expenses for the year ended December 31, 2000 was $106,160,054, which
was net of members’ contributions of $5,657,431.
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8. Noncurrent Liabilities:

The following is a summary of changes for noncurrent liabilities of the City for the year ended
December 31, 2001: ' :

Balance . Balance
January 1, December Due Within .
2001 Additions Reductions 31, 2001 One Year

Governmental
activities:

Capital improvement
fund:

G.O. bonds, 1998-

2018, 3.25% to 5.0%, -

Monumental Bldg )
renovation $ 2,565,000 $ - $ 100,000 $ 2,465,000 ~ $ 100,000

Health department
building lease fund:

G.O. bonds, 1993- . |
2007, 2.5% 10 4.9% 140,000 - 20,000 120,000 20,000

Accrued vacation and ‘ . :
sick leave * 967,920 38,194 - 1,006,114 70,500

Unfunded police/fire
pension obligation - 389.700 . - 4,658 . 385,042 . 5,200

Total Governmental
Activities Noncurrent

Liabilities '$4.062.620 _$38,194 $.124,658 $3.976.156 M
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Balance Balance
January 1, _ December Due Within
2001 Additions Reductions 31, 2001 One Year

Business-type
activities:
Water fund:
G.O. bonds, 1986-
2006, 8.125% $ 1,500,000 $ - $ 250,000 $ 1,250,000 $ 250,000
Sewer fund:
G.O. bonds,
advanced
refunding, 1993-
2007, 2.5% t0 4.9% 4,055,000 - 505,000 3,550,000 525,000
O.W.D.A. loan,
2000-2006, 3.2% 168,387 242,337 410,724 ‘ - -
G.O. bonds, 2001-
2022, 4.0% to
4.625% - 6,900,000 - 6,900,000 -
Accrued vacation
and sick leave * 287,119 25,413 - 312,532 -
Total $ 6,010,506 $7.167,750 $1,165,742 $12012,532 $ 775,000

* Additions and reductions of accrued vacation and sick leave are shown net since it is
impracticable for the City to determine these amounts separately. The current portion of
accrued sick leave amounts payable is included with accrued payroll in the governmental
funds. The current portion complies with provisions of GASB 16 and GASB Interpretation
Number 6.

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term

liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At year end,
$61,685 of internal service funds’ accrued vacation and sick leave is included in the above amounts.
Compensated absences are liquidated by the Separation Payment Fund.

The full faith and credit of the City are pledged as collateral for all general obligation bonds. The
Water Fund’s general obligation bonds will be paid with revenues generated from water revenues.
The Sewer Fund’s general obligation bonds are collateralized by the sewer system assets, are fully
insured and will be paid with sewer revenues generated from sewer rates.

On June 29, 2000, the City entered into a Wastewater Planning and Design Loan agreement with the
Ohio Water Development Authority (O.W.D.A.) for an amount up to $620,000 to be used for the
planning and design of an expansion to the wastewater treatment plant. During 2001, a total of
$242,337 was received as additional loan proceeds. The loan was repaid during December 2001
with the proceeds from the issuance of the $6.9 million of general obligation bonds listed above.
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10.

with the proceeds from the issuance of the $6.9 million of general obligation bonds listed above.
This new issuance of bonds is to be used to pay for the expansion to the wastewater treatment plant.
It is expected that sewer system revenues will be used to meet the debt service requirements of the
new bonds. The expansion is expected to be completed during 2003. At December 31, 2001,
unspent proceeds totaling $6,275,659 remained from the $6.9 million issuance.

Annual requirements to pay principal and interest on long-term debt at December 31, 2001 are:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Principal Interest Principal Interest
2002 $ 120,000 $ 116,850 $ 775,000 $ 576,798
2003 125,000 115,977 . 810,000 533,346
. 2004 130,000 107,307 840,000 485,362
2005 - 135,000 102,037 870,000 435,906
2006 140,000 96,515 900,000 384,981
2007-2011 700,000 381,785 2,110,000 . 1,471,313
2012-2016 845,000 210,707 2,125,000 1,043,775
2017-2021 390,000 27,288 2,075,000 544,344
2022-2026 ' 1,195,000 55,269

Total S_Z&,QD_Q LLM $11,700.000 $5.531,004

- Advance Refunding

On September 15, 1993, the City of Sidney advance refunded the 1987 Sewer System Improvement
Mortgage Reserve bond issue with new General Obligation Bonds. The City issued $7.302 million
of general obhgatlon refunding bonds to provide resources to purchase U.S. Government Securities
that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating resources for all future debt
service payments on the refunded debt. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be
defeased and the liability has been removed from the enterprise fund. This advance refunding was
undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the remaining 14 years by $1,958,469 and to
obtain an economic gain (difference between present value of the debt service payments of the
refunded and refunding bonds) of $315,392.

Construction Commitrnent

The City has an active construction project in‘ progress at year-end to expand the wastewater
treatment plant. The expansion is expected to increase the capacity of the plant from 5 million
gallons per day to 7 million. The City’s original commitment with the general contractor is
approximately $5.1 million. As of December 31, 2001, expenses totaling $180,395 have been
incurred against this contract. Proceeds from the newly issued bonds discussed in Note 8 will be
used to pay for this contract.

Contingent Liabilities:

The City is defendant in various court actions, but either it is covered by insurance or the amount
involved is not material in relation to the basic financial statements.

The City participates in several federally assisted programs (primarily Transportation and
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Community Development Block Grants) which are subject to program compliance audits by the
grantors or their representatives. The grantor agencies, at their option, may perform economy and
efficiency audits, program results audits or conduct monitoring visits. - Such audits and visits could
lead to reimbursement to the grantor agencies. Management believes such reimbursements, if any,
would not be material. : : '

Prior Year Restatements:

During 2001, it was determined that water and sewer infrastructure had not been properly capitalized

"in prior years. Rather, some of these amounts had been expensed as incurred. The cost and

accumulated depreciation of these capital assets at January 1, 2001 were as follows:

Water Sewer
Proprietary fund infrastructure, at estimated historical cost $ 6,482,483 $9,142,023
~ Less: accumulated depreciation » 2.195.650 3.055.328

Net capital assets $4286.833  $6,086,605

Beginning balance restatements for the Water and Sewer proprietary funds are as follows:

’ : Water Sewer
Net assets at the beginning of the year, as previously reported $ 2,336,186 - $ 4,867,774

Correction of error in reporting proprietary fund
infrastructure _ 4.286.833 6.086.695

Net assets at the beginning of the year, as restated $ 6,623,019 $10,954.469

12. Inferfund receivables and payables:

Interfund balances in the basic financial stateinents at December 31, 2001 were as follows:

: Fund , Receivable Payable
General ‘ ' $ 2,192 $ 4,076
- Street repair & maintenance - 661
Municipal income tax - 1,065
Non-major governmental funds - - 1,649
Internal service funds _ - 8,673 38
Water ' . - ‘ 3,597
‘Sewer : ' - 982
Solid waste . - - 584
Non-major enterprise funds - 42
Agency fund , ' ‘ 1,829 : -
’ $12.694 $12.694
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13. Imterfund transfers:

14,

15.

Interfund transfers in the basic financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2001 were:

: Fund Transfer In Transfer Out
General : , $ 8,430,407 $ 835,240
Street repair & maintenance ’ 60,000 : -
Municipal income tax - 10,538,009
Capital improvement ' 2,535,173 -
Non-major governmental funds 334,900 437,571
Water ' S 250,000 -

Solid waste v ) 165,340 -
Non-major enterprise funds -

$11.810820  $11.810.820

The transfer of $177,571 from a non-major governmental fund (namely Monumental Building

" Renovation Fund) to the capital improvement fund was due to completion of the Monumental

Building renovation project. All other interfund transfers are routine in nature and are to subsidize
the operations of the applicable funds. '

Self-Insurance:

The City has chosen to establish a risk financing fund for risks associated with the employees’ health
insurance plan. The risk financing fund is accounted for as an internal service fund where assets are
set aside for claim settlements. A premium is charged to each fund that accounts for part-time or
full-time employees. The total charge allocated to each of the funds is calculated using trends in
actual claims experience. Provisions are also made for unexpected and unusual claims.

Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the

loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported (IBNR). Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent
claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of pay-outs, and other economic and social
factors. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past two fiscal years are as follows:

2001 _ 2000
Unpaid claims, beginning of year $ 186,939 $ 152,494
Incurred claims (including IBNRs) - 958,097 993,188
Claim payments (879.229) (958.743)
Unpaid claims, end of year $__265.807 _$186,939

Risk Management:

‘The City .is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. The City has joined the
Miami Valley Risk Management Association, Inc. (MVRMA, Inc.), a joint insurance pool. The pool

-45-



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31 2001

consists of sixteen municipalities who pool risk for property, crxme, liability, boiler and machinery
and public official liability. '

The City pays an annual premium to MVRMA, Inc. for this coverage. The agreement provides that
the MVRMA, Inc. will be self-sustaining through member premiums and the purchase of excess and
stop-loss insurance. The deductible per occurrence for all types of claims is $2,500. During 2001,
‘the Association’s per-occurrence retention limit for property was $150,000, with the exception of
boiler and machinery for which there was a $5,000 per occurrence retention limit. Liability had a
per-occurrence retention limit of $500,000. After the retention limits are reached, excess insurance -
will cover up to the limits stated below. 4

General Liability (including law enforcement) $10,500,000 per occurrence
Automobile Liability A $10,500,000 per occurrence
Public Officials Liability ' $10,500,000 per occurrence
Boiler and Machinery BLANKET COVERAGE
Property 7 BLANKET COVERAGE
Flood and Earthquake $100,000,000 per occurrence

There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the year in any category of risk.
Settled claims did not exceed insurance coverage in each of the past three years.
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FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
Actual ~Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: :
Local taxes . _ $ 1,458,885 $ 1,458,885 $ 1,644000 - $ 185115
Intergovernmental revenues : 1,139,230 1,139,230 1,080,383 (58,847)
Special assessments 201,000 201,000 208,260 7,260
Charges for services ’ 89,300 89,300 117,243 27,943
Fines, licenses and permits 703,000 : 703,000 762,975 59,975
Investment income » o 601,600 601,600 590,934 (10,666)
Miscellaneous receipts and ’ . i
reimbursements 352,995 352,995 409,146 56,151
Total revenues 4,546,010 4,546,010 4,812,941 266,931
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
City Council »
Personal services ] 63,140 - 63,790 63,658 132
Contractual, materials and other " 138,042 148,392 140,838 7,554
. City Administration '
Personal services ' _ 231,890 230,425 226,792 3,633
Contractual, materials and other 34,453 35918 32,471 . 3,447
Finance .
Personal services 242,595 . 243,995 243,687 308 .
Contractual, materials and other ] 67,152 67,152 66,737 415
Law Director v ‘
Personal services 60,965 60,965 60,861 104
Contractual, materials and other ' - 29,530 29,530 28,614 . 916
Personnel
Personal services 55,470 55,550 55,416 134
Contractual, materials and other 152,346 152,266 138,466 13,800
Purchasing ‘ ’
Personal services - 86,900 84,900 83,296 . 1,604
Contractual, materials and other 34,131 40,131 37,781 2,350
City Hall '
Personal services _ 45,450 45,450 43,343 2,107
Contractual, materials and other 207,717 202,317 191,714 10,603
Miscellaneous ‘
Contractual, materials and other 360,570 380,570 359,199 21,371
Total general government 1,810,351 1,841,351 1,772,873 68,478
Security of persons & property
Police Services
Personal services 3,379,081 3,404,626 3,274,711 129,915
Contractual, materials and other 1,565,069 1,544,069 - 1,391,965 152,104
Fire Services ‘
Personal services o 2,722,315 . 2,718,715 2,666,413 52,302
425,150 30,017

Contractual, materials and other 456,637 455,167
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
GENERAL FUND :
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
v Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
Municipal Court o
Personal services N 614,000 614,000 599,210 ) 14,790
- Contractual, materials and other 313,549 313,549 269,525 44,024
Prosecutor ) . '
Personal services ’ 132,115 132,115 131,551 - 564
Contractual, materials and other 65,752 65,752 62,488 : 3,264
Street Lighting Department . o
Contractual, materials and other 206,000 206,000 205,946 54
Total security of persons & property 9,454,518 9,453,993 9,026,959 427,034
Community environment
Building Inspection :
Personal services : 80,030 77,990 - 76,152 i 1,838
~ Contractual, materials and other - 19,070 19,220 18,759 461
Engineering 7 :
Personal services 432,415 "~ 435,110 431,942 3,168
Contractual, materials and other ) 103,619 : 100,924 95,226 5,698
Community Planning & Development : : :
Personal services ' ) 60,035 60,035 55,560 4,475
Contractual, materials and other ' 38,353 38,353 26,978 11,375
Public Works - '
-Personal services ' 89,565 89,565 89,483 . 82
Contractual, materials and other 16,377 : 16,377 14,104 2,273
Code Enforcement o :
_ Personal services 64,465 66,355 65,831 52
Contractual, materials and other ‘ ' 9,255 14,325 12,769 1,556
Total community environment ' 913,184 ' 918,254 886,804 31,450
Leisure time activities )
Parks & Recreation - Administration
Personal services : : 114,620 116,820 115,968 852
Contractual, materials and other 13,590 12,710 12,439 271
Parks & Recreation - Programs
Personal services 70,308 71,118 - 70,054 1,064
Contractual, materials and other 45,738 45,738 44,134 1,604
Parks & Public Grounds : _
Personal services 562,376 559,886 554,331 5,555
Contractual, materials and other T 1 201,043 198,043 193,165 4,878
Urban Forest ; ' : )
Contractual, materials and other 55,000 55,000 54,277 723
Senior Center
‘Contractual, materials and other 7 33,400 39,215 -36,607 2,608
Total leisure time activities 1,096,075 1,098,530 1,080,975 17,555
Total expenditures : 13,274,128 13,312,128 12,767,611 544,517
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

GENERAL FUND :
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

o Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
. (Deficiericy) of revenues over/(under) -expénditur,es (8,728,118) (8,766,118) (7,954,670) 811,448
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): . ]
Transfersin - 9,200,000 9,200,000 8,430,407 - (769,593)
Transfers out (835,240) (835,240) (835,240) -
Total other financing sources (uses) » 8,364,760 8,364,760 7,595,167 (769,593)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over/
(under) expenditures and other :
financing uses . (363,358) (401,358) (359,503) 41,855
Fund Balances, beginning of year . 3,937,250 ‘ 3,937,250 3,937,250 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - 255,134 255,134
Fund Balances, end of year - ' $ 3,573,892 $ . 3,535,892 $ 296,989

$ 3,832,881
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

STREET FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: ) o
Intergovernmental revenues $ 835,000 $ 835,000 $ 825,993 $ - (9,007)
Miscellaneous receipts and o
reimbursements ] 75,000 75,000 - 100,537 25,537
Total revenues 910,000 910,000 926,530 16,530
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Transportation
Personal services 628,865 618,865 605,733 13,132
Contractual, materials and other 384,272 394,272 340,283 53,989
Total expenditures : 1,013,137 1,013,137 946,016 67,121
- -Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(under) expenditures (103,137) (103,137) (19,486) 83,651
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in ) . 60,000 60,000 60,000 -
Total other financing sources 60,000 60,000 60,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over/(under) :
expenditures and other financing uses (43,137) (43,137) 40,514 83,651
Fund Balances, beginning of year ) 444,900 444,900 444,900 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - 1,150 1,150
Fund Balances, end of year . . $ 401,763 $ 401,763 $ 486,564 $ 84,801
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MUNICIPAL INCOME TAX FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

REVENUES:
Local taxes
Miscellaneous receipts and
" reimbursements

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Personal services
Contractual, materials and other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
_(under) expenditures :

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out

Total other financing uses

Deficiency of revenues and other
financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses

Fund Balances, béginning of year
Encumbrances, end of year
Fund Balances, end of year

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
$ 11,631,000  § 11,631,000 $ 10,649,330 $ (981,670)
175 175 1,404 1,229
11,631,175 . 11,631,175 10,650,734 (980,441)
122,920 122,920 122,495 425
38,543 38,543 33,191 5,352
161,463 161,463 155,686 5777
11,469,712 11,469,712 10,495,048 (974,664)
~ (11,500,000 (11,500,000) (10,538,009) (961,991)
(11,500,000 (11,500,000) (10,538,009) (961,991)
(30,288) (30,288) (42,961) (12,673)
681,023 681,023 681,023 -
- - 2,808 2,808
$ 650,735 $ 650735 $ 640,870 $  (9,865)
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Basis of Budgeting

Basis of budgeting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts.
The City of Sidney’s budget for all funds is prepared on a cash-encumbrance basis wherein transactions are
recorded when cash is received or disbursed, or when a commitment has been recorded as an encumbrance
against an applicable appropriation. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end to the extent they have not
been expended or lawfully encumbered. Fund balances shown are unencumbered cash balances This
basis is utilized for all interim financial statements issued durmg the year.

The basis of budgeting differs from the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) used for the
City’s year-end financial statements contained in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).
Under that basis of accounting, revenues are generally recognized when the obligation to the City arises;
the budget basis, however, recognizes revenue only when cash has been received. In the CAFR,
expenditures are generally recognized in the period in which they are incurred. Under the budget basis,
expenditures are recognized when cash has been disbursed or when an encumbrance has been placed
against an appropriation.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end. State law provides that, generally, no contract, agreement
‘or other obligation involving the expenditure of money shall be entered into unless the Finance Officer first
certifies that the money required for such contract, agreement, obligation or expenditure is in the treasury,
or is anticipated to come into the treasury, before the maturity of such contract. (O.R.C. 5705.41)

Budget Process

The policy of the Clty is to have the annual operatmg and capital budgcts approved prior to January 1 of
each year.

The City follows procedures prescnbed by State law in estabhshmg its budgets as follows:

1. The City must submit a fax budget of estimated cash receipts and beginning-of-year cash fund
balances for all funds to the County Budget Commission by July 20 of each year for the following
year, January- 1 through December 31. (O.R.C. 5705.28)

-a. The County Budget Commission certifies its actions by September 1 and issues an Official
Certificate of Estimated Resources, (the “Certificate™) limiting the maximum amount the City
-may expend from a given fund during the year to the estimated resources available. (O. R C.
5705.35) -

b.  About January 1, the Certificate is amended to reflect the actual unencumbered balances from
the preceding year. The City must prepare its appropriations so that the total contemplated
expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year will not exceed the amount stated in the
initial or amended Certificate. (O.R.C. 5705.36)

2. The five-year financial plan is updated on an annual basis, usually in September. The plan is prepared
after receiving input from all departments. The plan shall include all major operating funds and all
capital improvement funds of the City. The purpose of this plan is to:

a. identify major policy issues for City Council consideration prior to the preparatlon of the
annual budget;

b. establish capital project priorities and make advance preparation for the funding of prolects
within the five-year horizon;

c. make conservative financial projections for all major operating funds and all capltal
improvements to provide assurance that adequate funding exists for proposed projects. and
services;
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d. identify financial trends in advance or in the early stages so that timely corrective action can
be taken, if needed;

e. communicate the City’s intermediate plans to the public and provide an opportunity for the
public to offer input.

3. The operating budget is recommended to Council based upon the City-Manager-approved requests
submitted by each department. The City Manager acts as budget officer for the City and submits a
proposed operating budget to the City Council on an annual basis. Public hearings are held to obtain
taxpayer input. The Council enacts the budget through passage of an ordinance. All funds of the City
have annual budgets legally adopted by the City Council.

4. Modifications to the budget may be made from time to time during the budget year. The Statement of
Financial Policy provides the permissible methods of amending the budget.

Reconciliation of Budget Basis o GAAP Basis

The adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations for the year ended December 3 1, 2001, from
the GAAP basis to the budget basis are as follows:

General Street Income Tax

Net change in fund balance — GAAP Basis $ (102,491) $ 77,757 $ (1,086,580)
Increase / (decrease):

Due to revenues (59,052) 17,246 915,550

Due to expenditures (197,960) (54,489) 128,069
Excess/(deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over/(under) expenditures and other
uses — Budget Basis $ (359,503) $ 40,514 $ (42,961)
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
Fund Descriptions
December 31, 2001

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for government resources not accounted for in any
other fund. The General Fund balance is available to the City for any purpose provided it
is expended or transferred according to the City Charter and/or the general laws of the
State of Ohio. ' '

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted
to expenditure for particular purposes.

Major special revenue funds:

Street Repair and Maintenance Fund. To account for state-levied and
controlled gasoline tax and motor vehicle registration fees designated for street
‘maintenance and repair. :

vMuniéipal Income Tax Fund. To account for the collection, collection costs
and distribution of City-levied income tax. '

Non-major special revenue funds:

State Highway Fund. To account for the portion of the state gasoline tax and
motor vehicle registration fees designated for street maintenance and repair of
state highways within the City.

County Auto License Fund. To account for county-levied motor vehicle
registration fees designated for street construction, maintenance and repair.

Stormwater Management Fund. To account for the operation and maintenance
of the stormwater system.

Cemetery Fund. To account for the operation and maintenance of the cemetery
facilities.

Transportation Fund. To account for the operation and maintenance of the
Dial-A-Ride service.

C.D.B.G. Fund. To account for state funds and federal funds passed through
state agencies for the community development activities.

C.D.B.G. Revolving Loan Fund. To account for loans and repayment of loans
for businesses who qualify for low interest loans for economic development.

Parking Meter and Off-Street Parking Fund. Accounts for the operation of
the parking system and related expenditures. The operating expenditures and
capital improvements are supported by fines, customer charges, and additional
funding, as necessary, from the General Fund.

Probation Grant Fund. To account for funds received from the Ohio
Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections for the operation of the Municipal
Court’s probation department.

Health Department Building Lease Fund. To account for the operation and
maintenance of the building that is leased to the county health department.
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Separation Payment Fund. To account for the payment of eligiblé vacation and
sick leave balances to employees at retirement, and the accumulation of resources
for that purpose.

Insurance Fund. To account for funds received from insurance claims to repair
or replace city assets.

Drug Law Enforcement Fund. To account for mandatory fines collected for
drug offenses.

Law Enforcement Fund. To account for the procee&s from the confiscation of
contraband.

Indigent Driver Alcohol Treatment Fund. To account for mandatory fines for
DUTI arrests that are used to treat drivers who cannot afford the rehabilitation.

Enforcement & Education Fund. To account for financial resources used to
educate and treat persons with alcohol related problems and to enhance law
enforcement activities as a deterrent to the operation of motor vehicles while
under the influence of alcohol.

OCJS Grant Fund. To account for the City’s-administration of a regional drug
unit grant with funds provided by a grant from the Ohio Office of Criminal
Justice Services and m-kmd contributions from other participating agencies in the
region.

Imprest Cash Fund. To account for funds held in cash for various funds to
allow for operating cash supplies.

Fire Loss Security Fund. To account for the holding of a portion of insurance
proceeds from fire loss of private property, held as security against the cost of
removing, securing or repairing the damaged structure.

Cemetery Maintenance Fund. To account for that portion of cemetery sales
revenue directed by City policy to be held for the perpetual care of Graceland
Cemetery.

Mausoleum Maintenance Fund. To account for that portion of cemetery sales
revenue directed by City policy to be held for the perpetual maintenance and
repair of the mausoleum at Graceland Cemetery.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

Major capital projects funds:

Capital Improvement Fund. . To account for the income tax resources
earmarked for capital improvements used for general 1mprovement of all City
facilities and operations. :
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Non-major capital projects funds:

Capital Investment Fund. To account for financial resources accumulated for
the acquisition and construction of general fixed assets. :

Special Assessment Construction Fund. To account for the financial resources
used for the improvement of sidewalks and dangerous buildings within the City.

Monumental Building Renovation Fund. To account for the capital
expenditures associated with the renovation of the Monumental Building into a
new facility for the Municipal Court.

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprlses for which 1) the intent of the government’s
legislative body is that goods or services provided to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges or 2) the government’s -
legislative body has decided that periodic determination of net income is approprlate for
accountability purposes.

Major enterprise funds:

Non-maj

Water Fund Accounts for the operation of the waterworks distribution system
and related expenses, including capital improvement and debt service. The
operation is exclusively financed by customer user charges.

Sewer Fund. Accounts for the operation of the sanitary sewer collection and
treatment system and related expenses, including capital improvement and debt
service. The operation is exclusively financed by customer user charges.

‘Solid Waste Fund. Accounts for the operation of the solid waste collection
~ system and related expenses, including capital improvements. The operations are

financed through user charges and a subsidy from the General Fund.

ajor enterprise funds:

Airport Fund. Accounts for the operation of the airport facility and related
expenses, including capital improvement. The operating expenses and capital

‘improvements are supported by customer charges and additional fundmg, as

necessary, from the General Fund.

Swimming Pool Fund. Accounts for the operation of the public swimming pool
and related expenses, including capital improvements. The operating expenses
are financed through user charges while the capital improvements are sub51dlzed
by the General Fund.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided
by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to
other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Service Center Fund. To account for the operation of the Service Center
building and the municipal garage. These activities are funded by charges to City
departments that use these services.

Technology Fund. To account for the costs of purchasing and maintaining the
City’s computer and phone systems and the allocation of those costs to the usmg
.departments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Self-Insurance Fund. To account for the employees’ health insurance plan,
including the payment of insurance premiums and claims. The fund is
exclusively financed by premiums pald by City employees and from various
operating funds of the City. :

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of other parties. -

Municipal Court Fund. To account for assets received and disbursed by the
Municipal Court as agent and custodian relative to civil or criminal court matters.

Medical Reimbursement Fund. To account for employee payroll 'withholdings
designated for employees’ medical reimbursement accounts established under a
Section 125 Cafetena Plan. :

Port Jefferson Fund. To account for funds collected on behalf of the Village of

Port Jefferson. These funds are collected with sewer bills from residents of the
Village. :
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

 NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables (net):
.. Interest
Loans
" Special assessments
Other
Receivables from other governments
Inventory '
Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Inventory
Prepaid Items
Encumbrances
Unreserved

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Non-major Non-major

Special Capital Total Non-major
Revenue Projects Governmental

Funds Funds Funds
'$ 2662582 § 471972 -$ 3,134,554
16,590 5,662 22,252
118,784 - 118,784
.- 19,349 19,349
67,041 - 67,041
43,644 - 43,644
19,992 - 19,992
1,003 - 1,003 .
$ 2,929,636 $ 496,983 $ 3,426,619
$ 82946 $ 8,716 $ 91,662
43,649 - 43,649
1,649 - 1,649
73,606 22,741 96,347
201,850 31,457 233,307
19,992 - - 19,992
1,003 - 1,003
84,362 36,724 121,086
2,622,429 428,802 3,051,231
. 2,727,786 465,526 3,193,312
$ 2,929,636 $ 496,983 $ 3,426,619
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES :

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Special Capital ‘ Total Non-major

Revenue Projects Governmental
Funds v Funds Funds -
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues $ 1,194670 $ 100,000 ‘$ 1,294,670
Special assessments - 42,832 42,832
Charges for services . 139,389 - 139,389
Fines, licenses and permits 65,143 L. 65,143
Investment income ) 79,501 21,243 100,744
Miscellaneous receipts and ’ .
reimbursements 65,346 - 65,346
Total revenues o 1,544,049 164,075 1,708,124
EXPENDITURES:
Current: : ]
General government ) 54,865 - 54,865
Security of persons & property - 283,728 - - 283,728
Health 161,851 - 161,851
Transportation 329,861 - ' 329,861
Community environment . 66,946 - 66,946
Basic utility services 159,406 : - 159,406
Capital outlay _ 935,455 300,872 1,236,327
Debt service: .
Principal ’ 20,000 - 20,000
Interest B 7,296 - 7,296
Total expenditures 2,019,408 300,872 2,320,280
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (475,359) (136,797) - (612,156)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in ' 334,900 - 334,900
Transfers out ' (10,000) (427,571) (437,571)
Total other financing sources (uses) 324,900 (427,571) (102,671)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over / (under) expenditures
and other financing uses (150,459) (564,368) (714,827)
Fund balances, beginning of year 2,878,245 1,029,894 . 3,908,139
Fund balances, end of year : $ 2,727,786 $§ 465,526 $ 3,193,312
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
'DECEMBER 31, 2001

ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables (net):
Interest
Loans
Special assessments
" Other
Receivables from other governments
- Inventory
Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities: :
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Inventory
Prepaid Items
Encumbrances
Unreserved

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Non-major Non-major
Special Capital Total Non-major
Revenue Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
$ 2662582 § 471972 $ 3,134,554
16,590 5662 22,252
118,784 - 118,784
- 19,349 19,349
67,041 - 67,041
43,644 - 43,644
19,992 - 19,992
19003 = 1,003
$ 2929636 § 496,983 $ 3,426,619
$ 82946 $ . 8716 $ 91,662
43,649 - 43,649
1,649 - 1,649
73,606 22,741 96,347
201,850 31,457 233,307
19,992 - 19,992
1,003 - - 1,003
84,362 36,724 121,086
2,622,429 428,802 3,051,231
2,727,786 465,526 3,193,312
$ 2929636 - $ 496,983 $ 3,426,619
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Non-major
Special "Monumental Capital
Capital - Assessment Building Projects
~_Investment Construction Renovation Funds Totals
REVENUES: . v
Intergovernmental revenues - ‘ ~$ 100,000 $ - $ - $ .100,000
Special assessments . - - 42,832 - 42,832
Investment income : 21,243 - - 21,243
Total revenues 121,243 42,832 - 164,075
EXPENDITURES: .
Capital outlay . - 39,971 260,901 300,872
. Total expenditures - 39,971 260,901 300,872
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 121,243 2,861 (260,901) (136,797)
OTHER FINANCING USES: .
Transfers out (250,000) - 177,57H (427,571
Total other financing uses (250,000) - (177,571) (427,571
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over/(under) )
expenditures and other financing uses (128,757) 2,861 (438,472) (564,368)
Fund balances, beginning of year 474,586 94,799 460,509 1,029,894
Fund balances, end of year $ 345,829 - $ 97,660 3 22,037 $ 465,526
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

' NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001 '

ASSETS
Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables (net):
Accounts
Other
Inventory
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Capital assets not subject to depreciation:
Land
Capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investe_d in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted - :

Total net assets

_Total liabilities and net assets

-67-

» Non-major

, Swimming Enterprise
Airport Pool Funds Totals
$ 32,506 $ 22,049 $ 54,555
12,286 - 12,286
6,493 - 6,493
16,408 - 16,408
1,225 110 1,335
68,918 22,159 91,077
309,265 - 309,265
680,030 717,797 1,397,827
989,295 717,797 1,707,092
$ 1,058213 $ 739,956 $ 1,798,169
$ 16,955 $ 162 $ 17,117
- 564 564
4 - 42
6493 - 6,493
23,490 726 24216
$ 23,490 $ 726 $ 24216
$. 989,295 $ 717,797 $ 1,707,092
. 45,428 21,433 66,861
$ 1,034,723 $ 739230  $ 1773953
$ 1,058,213 $ 739,956 $ 1,798,169



‘CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
FUND NET ASSETS - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

- 68 -

» Non-major
Swimming Enterprise
Airport Pool Funds Totals
OPERATING REVENUE: . » . :
Charges for services $ 149,723 $ 56,275 $ 205,998
Other revenue 7,129 - 7,129
Total operating revenues _ 156,852 - 56,275 213‘,127
OPERATING EXPENSES: , -
Personal services - 53,012 53,012
General operating 44,592 12,691 57,283
Contractual services : 31,500 - - 31,500
Materials and supplies ) : 83,194 15,885 99,079
Depreciation 23,244 23,177 46,421
Total operating expenses 182,530 104,765 287,295
Operéting income (loss) ' o _ (25,678) ' (48,490) (74,168)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income. - . - . - -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets ' - : - -
Interest expense - - -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) - ‘ - -
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (25,678) (48,490) (74,168)
Capital contributions 281,090 v : - 281,090
Transfers in . ) - _ 35,000 35,000
Change in net assets ' , ' 255412 {(13,490) 241,922
Net assets, beginning of year 779,311 752,720 1,532,031
" Net assets, end of year : $ 1,034,’723 $ 739,230 $ 1,773,953



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Cash flows from operating activities: -
Receipts from customers and users
- Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in

§

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Net increase in pooled cash and investments

Pooled cash and investments, beginning of year

Pooied cash and investments, end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Operating loss
- Adjustments to reconcile operating
loss to net cash used
by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid items
Inventory
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable and
compensated absences
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Net cash used by operating activities

‘Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets from government

Non-major
Swimming Enterprise
Airport Pool Funds Totals
$ 152949 $ 56275  $ 209,224
(160,715) (27,998 (188,713)
- (52,951) (52,951)
(470) - 470)
(8,236) (24,674) (32,910)
- 35,000 35,000
- 35,000 35,000
(8,236) 10,326 2,090
40,742 11,723 52,465
$ 32,506 $ 22,049 $ 54,555
$ @5678) $ (48490) $ (74,168)
23,244 23,177 46,421
(3,903) - (3,903)
315 - 315
(13) 416 403
(1,282) - (1,282)
(572) 162 (410)
- 61 61
(32) - (32)
(315) - (315)
$ (8236) $ (4,674) $ (32,910)
$ 281,000  $ - $ 281,090
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
Internal
Service » Self- Service
Center Technology Insurance - Totals
ASSETS .
Current assets: - -
Pooled cash and investments $ 273,433 $ 70,199 $ 398,410 $ 742,042
Receivables (net): . ‘ ) )
Interest : ’ - - 6,361 6,361
Other . - - 14,002 14,002
Inventory T 18,226 3,320 - 21,546
Due from (to) other funds 8,673 - - 8,673
Prepaid items : 2,921 9,402 16,699 29,022
Total current assets 303,253 82,921 "~ 435472 821 ,646
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of )
accumulated depreciation . 620,112 18,464 - 638,576
_ Total noncurrent assets 620,112 18,464 - 638,576
Total assets . 8 923,365 $ 101,385 - $ 435,472 $ 1,460,222
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities: _ . . . . .

" Accounts payable . $ 7,558 $ 3,942 $ 265,807 $ 271,307
Salaries and benefits payable o 19,355 12,466 - 31,821
Due to other funds - 11 27 - 38
Other accrued liabilities ’

Deferred revenue . : - - - 18,845 : 18,845
Total current liabilities .~ : 26,924 16,435 284,652 328,011
Noncurrent liabilities: - 7
Compensated absences . 53,494 8,191 - 61,685
Total'noncurrent liabilities . 53,494 8,191 : - ‘ 61,685
Total liabilities $ 80,418 $ 24,626 $ 284,652 3 389,696
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 620,112 $ 18,464 $ - $ 638,576
Unrestricted 222,835 58,295 150,820 ] 431,950
Total net assets 842,947 76,759 150,820 1,070,526
Total liabilities and net assets $ 923,365 . 3 101,385 - $ ‘ 435,472 $ 1,460,222
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
FUND NET ASSETS -

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS :

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Internal
Service B Self- Service
Center Technology Insurance Totals
OPERATING REVENUES:
_ Charges for services 3 492,104 $ 251,337 $ 1,129,048 $ 1,872,489
Other revenue 7 1,139 583 12,063 13,785
Total operating revenues ’ 493,243 251,920 1,141,111 ] 1,886,274
" OPERATING EXPENSES:

* Personal services o 255,517 131,600 - 387,117
General operating 126,236 39,238 1,290,358 1,455,832
Contractual services ' - 868 27,561 28,429
Materials and supplies : 191,799 52,191 - 243,990
Depreciation v 37,584 5,294 - 42,878

Total operating expenses ‘ 611,136 229,191 1,317,919 2,158,246
Operating income (loss) . (117,893) 22,729 (176,808) (271,972)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): .
Investment income - - ) - - 28,263 28,263
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - v (3,957) - (3,957
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) - ) (3,957 : 28,263 - 24,306
Income (loss) before contributions ( 117,893) 18,772 (148,545) (247,666)
Capital contributions : 15,910 : 5,252 - 21,162
Change in net assets . . (101,983) 24,024 (.148,545) (226,504)
Net assets, beginning of year . 944,930 52,735 299,365 1,297,030
Net assets, end of year $ 842,947 $ 76,759 $ 150,820 $ 1,070,526
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
'Receipts from interfund services
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related .
financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets

Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments
Net unrealized gain on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in pooled cash and investments
Pooled cash and investments, beginning of year

Pooled cash and investments, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
-~ Other receivables
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Inventory
Accounts payable -
Salaries and benefits payable and
compensated absences
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Net cash providedk(used) by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets from government

Internal
Service Self- “Service
Center __Technology Insurance Totals
$ 516,204 $ 253,164 $ 1,172,568 $ 1,941,936
(311,438) (90,831) (1,242,459) (1,644,728)
(244,690) (156,743) - (401,433)
(88) (32 - (120)
(40,012 5,558 (69,891) (104,345)
(3.065) - - (3,065)
(3,065) - - (3,065)
. - 25,011 25,011
- - 4,100 4,100
- - 29,111 29,111
43,077 5,558 (40,780), (78,299
316,510 64,641 439,190 820,341
$ 273433 § 70199 $ 398410 § 742,042
$ (117,893) § 2,729 % (176,808) § (271,972)
37,584 5,293 - 42,378
2,268 1,244 18,532 22,044
20,693 - - 20,693
(6)8) (1,506) (3,408) (4,966)
8,282 562 - 8,844
(1,733) 2,366 78,368 79,501
10,827 (25,143) - (14,316)
11 13 - 24
- - 12,925 12,925
$ (40,012) $ 5,558 $ (69,891) $ (104,345)
$ 15,910 $ - $ - $ 15,910
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
Municipai . Medical Port Agency
A _ Court Reimbursement Jefferson Total
ASSETS . . ‘ ‘ .
Pooled cash and investments - $ 118,773 $ 5,973 $ 1,093 $ 125,839
Accounts receivable - ) - 6,498 6,498
Due from other funds’ ) - - 1,829 1,829
Total assets $ . 118,773 $ - 5,973 $ 9.420 $ 134,166
LIABILITIES ' :
Due to employees $ - $ 865 $ - $ 865
Due to other funds 52,434 C- - : 52,434
Due to other governments 35,857 - . 9,420 45,277
"Undistributed monies 30,482 _ 5,108 - 35.590
Total liabilities . $ 118,773 $ 5,973 $ 9,420 $ 134,166
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

STATE HIGHWAY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: »
Intergovernmental revenue $ 67,703 $ 67,703 $ 64,741 $ (2,962)
Total revenues . 67,703 67,703 64,741 . (2,962)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Transportation
Contractual, materials and other - 68,000 68,000 68,000 -
Total expenditures 68,000 68,000 68,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(under) expenditures 297) 297) (3,259 (2,962)
" Fund Balances, beginning of year - 40,409 40,409 40,409 -
Encumbrances, end of year N - - - -
Fund Balances, end of year $ 40,112 $ 40,112 $ 37,150 $ (2,962)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN )
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
COUNTY AUTO LICENSE FUND '
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
' . Actual Varié.nce
Original Final Including from Final
. Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenue - $ 120,000 $ 120,000 $ 134,000 $ 14,000
Total revenues 120,000 120,000 134,000 14,000
EXPENDITURES: )
Oomractual, materials and other 120,000 120,000 120,000 -
Total expenditures 120,000 120,000 120,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/

(under) expenditures ) - - 14,000 14,000
Fund Balances, beginning of year - - - -
Encumbrances, end of year ) - - - -
Fund Balances, end of year $ - $ - $ 14,000 $§ - 14,000
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget - Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: - $ - - $ 1,252 $ 1,252
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Basic utility services
Personal services ' 136,095 140,295 138,843 1,452
Contractual, materials and other 44,284 43,284 32,768 10,516
Total expenditures ' 180,379 183,579 171,611 11,968
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(under) expenditures (180,379) (183,579) (170,359 13,220
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: i )
Transfers in 172,400 172,400 172,400 -
Total other financing sources 172,400 172,400 172,400 -
Excess (dcﬁcien(_;y) of revenues and other
financing sources over/(under)
expenditures and other financing uses ©(7,979) (11,179) 2,041 13,220
Fund Balances, beginning of year . 124,475 124,475 124,475 -
Encumbrances, end of year ) - - 2,553 2,553
Fund Balances, end of year $ 116,496 113,296 $ 129,069 $ 15,773
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

CEMETERY FUND -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

~ Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: .
Charges for services $ 83,000 $ 83,000 $ 78,696 $ 4,304)
Miscellaneous receipts and )
reimbursements 2,000 2,000 5475 3,475
Total revenues ' 85,000 85,000 84,171 (829)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Health ‘ 7
Personal services 124,230 126,730 126,158 572
Contractual, materials and other 40,689 38,189 32,137 6,052
Total expenditures ' 164,919 164,919 158,295 6,624
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(under) expenditures (79,919) (79,919) - (74,124) 5,795
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: o
Transfers in 85,000 85,000 85,000 -
Total other financing sources _ 85,000 85,000 85,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over/(under) ]
expenditures and other financing uses 5,081 5,081 10,876 5,795
Fund Balances, beginning of year . 77.724 77,724 77,724 -
Encumbrances, end of year ) - - 3,363 3,363
Fund Balances, end of year $ 82,805 $ 82,805 $ 91,963 $ 9,158
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

TRANSPORTATION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

. Actual Variance
Original - . Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: ]
Intergovernmental revenues $ 158,150 $ 158,150 $ 171,265 $ 13,115
Charges for services 60,000 60,000 45,228 (14,772)
Miscellaneous receipts and .
reimbursements - - 2,025 2,025
Total revenues 218,150 218,150 218,518 368
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Transportation .
Personal services i 221,495 221,495 200,364 21,131
Contractual, materials and other 71,654 71,654 62,396 9,258
Total expenditures 203,149 A 293,149 262,760 30,389
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/ -
(under) expenditures ' (74,999) (74,999) (44,242) 30,757
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in . 70,000 70,000 70,000 -
Total other financing sources . 70,000 70,000 70,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other '
financing sources over/(under) o
expenditures and other financing uses 4,999) (4,999) 25,758 30,757 .
Fund Balances, beginning of year . 205,247 205,247 205,247 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - 2,303 2,303
$ 233,308 $ 33,060

Fund Balances, end of year v $ 200,248 $ 200,248
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

C.D.B.G. FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenue
Investment income -

" Miscellaneous receipts and
reimbursements

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community environment
Contractual, materials and other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over/(under)
- expenditures and other financing uses

Fund Balances, beginning of year
Encumbrances, end of year
Fund Balances, end of year

Actual . Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
$ 529,000 $ 529,000 3 570,582 $ 41,582
- - 9,439 9,439
529,000 529,000 -580,021 51,021
862,977 1,079,513 938,378 141,135
862,977 1,079,513 938,378 141,135
(333,977 (550,513) (358,357) 192,156
- - 303,000 303,000
- - 303,000 303,000
(333,977) (550,513) (55,357) 495,156
142,303 142,303 142,303 -
- 127,242 127,242
$ (191,674 $ (408210) § 214,188 $ 622,398
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO )

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
" FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

C.D.B.G. REVOLVING LOAN FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance -
Original - Final . Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: .

Investment income ) $ 27,000. $ . 27,000 $ 27,314 $ 314

Miscellaneous receipts and ) ’

reimbursements 50,000 50,000 104,777 54,777

Total revenues B 77,000 77,000 132,091 - 55,091
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community environment § -

Contractual, materials and other 259,544 259,544 12,747 246,797
Total expenditures 259,544 259,544 12,747 246,797
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/ :

(under) expenditures -(182,544) (182,544) 119,344 301,888
OTHER FINANCING USES:

Transfers out - (303,000) '(303,000) -

Total other financing uses - (303,000) (303,000) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
- financing sources over/(under) .

expenditures and other financing uses (182,544) (485,544) (183,656) 301,888
Fund Balances, beginning of year 505,261 505,261 505,261 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - - 776 776

-Fund Balances, end of year . $ 322717 °$ 19,717 $ 322,381 $ 302,664
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
" PARKING METER/OFF-STREET PARKING FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20601 :
.Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
. Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: :

Fines, licenses and pcrmi_ts $ 33,375 $ 33,375 $ 30,225 $ (3,150)

Miscellaneous receipts and

reimbursements - - 237 237

Total reveﬁues 33,375 33,375 30,462 (2,913)
EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Security of persons & property »
Personal services 23,520 22,620 20,438 2,182
Contractual, materials and other 12,395 13,295 13,267 28

Total expenditures 35,915 35915 33,705 2,210
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/

(under) expenditures (2,540) " (2,540) (3,243) (703)
Fund Balances, beginning of year ) . 74,639 74,639 74,639 -
Encumbrances, end of year : - - 613 613
Fund Balances, end of year $ 72,099 - § 72,099 $ 72,009 $ (90)
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'CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO :

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

. PROBATION GRANT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: )
Intergovernmental revenues $ 52,015 $ 52,015 $ 76,751 $ 24,736
Miscellaneous receipts and
reimbursements - - 430 430
Total revenues 52,015 52,015 77,181 25,166
EXPENDITURES:
Current: v
Security of persons & property
Personal services - 42,845 42,845 42,717 128
Contractual, materials and other 10,895 17,520 15,443 2,077
Total expenditures - : 53,740 60,365 58,160 2,205
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/ .

_ (under) expenditures (1,725) (8,350) 19,021 27,371
Fund Balances, beginning of year - (4,813) 4,813) 4,813) -
Encumbrances, end of year ) - - - -
Fund Balances, end of year ) $ 6,538) % (13,163) $ 14,208 $ 27,371
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
HEALTH DEPARTMENT BUILDING LEASE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
. Budget Budget Encumbrances -~ Budget
REVENUES:
" Miscellaneous receipts and
reimbursements $ 44,850 $ 44,850 $ 39,440 $ (5,410)
Total revenues - 44,850 ) 44,850 39,440 (5,410)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Health
Contractual, materials and other 37,825 38,825 38,230 595
Total expenditures 37,825 38,825 38,230 595
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/

(under) expenditures 7,025 6,025 1,210 (4,815)
Fund Balances, beginning of year - 64,233 64,233 64,233 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - 255 255
Fund Balances, end of year . $ 71,258 $ 70,258 $ 65,698 $ (4,560)

-81-



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

.SEPARATION PAYMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

: Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
_Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
'REVENUES . $ - $ - 3 - 3 -
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Personal services 59,000 59,000 52,554 6,446
Total expenditures 59,000 59,000 52,554 6,446
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(um_ier) expenditures ' ) (59,000) (59,000) (52,554) _ 6,446
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over/(under) )
expenditures and other financing uses (59,000) (59,000) (52,554) 6,446
Fund Balances, beginning of year 726,279 726,279 726,279 -
Encumbrances, end of year ’ - - - -
Fund Balances, end of year o $ 667,279 $ 667,279 $ 673,725 $ 6,446
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
INSURANCE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous receipts and
reimbursements $ 18,000 $ - 18,000 - $ 5,706 $  (12,294)
Total revenues 18,000 18,000 5,706 (12,294)
EXPENDITURES:
Current: )
- General government
Contractual, materials and other 30,000 30,000 28,180 1,820
Total expenditures 30,000 30,000 28,180 1,820
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(under) expenditures (12,000) (12,000) (22,474) (10,474)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 7,500 7,500 7,500 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over/(under)
expenditures and other financing uses (4,500) (4,500) (14,974) (10,474)
Fund Balances, beginning of year 19,590 19,590 19,590 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - - -
Fund Balances, end of year $ - 15,000 $ 15,090 $ 4,616 $ (10474
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN )
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS'

DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

REVENUES:
Fines, licenses and permits
Total revenues

Expenditures: -
Current:
Security of persons & property
Contractual, materials and other
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(under) expenditures

Fund Balances, beginning of year
Encumbrances, end of year
Fund Balances, end of year

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

REVENUES:
Fines, licenses and permits
Miscellaneous receipts and
reimbursements

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
" Security of persons & property
Contractual, materials and other
Total Expenditures *

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(under) expenditures

Fund Balances, beginning of year
Encumbrances, end of year
Fund Balances, end of year

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
$ 19000 $ 19,000 $ 21,800 $ 2,800
19,000 -19,000 21,800 2,800
30,200 30,200 1,304 28,896
30,200 30,200 1,304 28,896
(11,200) - (11,200) 20,496 31,696
35076 35,076 35,076 -
$ 23,876 $ 23,876 $ 55,572 $ 31,69
Actual Variance-
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
$ - $ - $ - $ -
1,000 1,000 5 (1,000)
1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
3,386 3,386 3,386 -
$ 4,386 $ 4,386 $ 3,386 3 (1,000)
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
INDIGENT DRIVER ALCOHOL TREATMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 '

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
__Budget Budget - Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: .

Fines, licenses and permits $ 8,500 $ 8,500 $ 7,468 $ (1,032)

Miscellaneous receipts and ’

reimbursements ' 4,000 4,000 9,887 5,887

Total revenues 12,500 12,500 17,355 4,855
EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Security of persons & property
Contractual, materials and other 25,000 25,000 - 25,000

Total expenditures - . 25,000 25,000 - 25,000 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/

(Under) Expenditures - (12,500) (12,500) 17,355 29,855
Fund Balances, beginning of year 53,659 53,659 53,659 -
Encumbrances, end of year : - - ‘ - -
Fund Balances, end of year $ 41,159 $ 41,159 $ 71,014 $ 29,855
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
ENFORCEMENT & EDUCATION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual ~ Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: ‘
. Fines, licenses and permits $ 4,500 $ 4,500 $ 4,893 $ © 393
Total revenues 4,500 4,500 4,893 393
EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Security of persons & property A
Personal services 8,760 8,760 3,032 5,728
Contractual, materials and other - - - -

Total expenditures 8,760 8,760 3,032 5,728
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/

(under) expenditures : (4,260) (4,260) 1,861 6,121
Fund Balances, beginning of year ’ 7,529 1,529 7,529 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - - -

$ 6,121

Fund Balances, end of year 3 3,269 $ 3,269 3 9,390
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

OCJS GRANT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget _Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: .
Miscellaneous receipts and
reimbursements $ - $ 165,328 $ 165,328 $ -
‘Total revenues - 165,328 165,328 -
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Contractual, materials and other - 165,328 165,328 -
Total expenditures - 165,328 165,328 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/

(under) expenditures - - - -
Fund Balances, beginning of year - - - -
Encumbrances, end-of year - - 10,792 10,792
Fund Balances, end of year $ - $ - $ 10,792 $ 10,792
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
IMPREST CASHFUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance
Original Final Including - from Final -
Budget Budget Encumbrances - Budget
REVENUES $ - $ - 3 - $ -
EXPENDITURES - - - -
‘Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/

(under) expenditures - - - -
Fund Balances, beginning of year 2,300 2,300 2,300 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - - -

$ 2,300 $ 2,300 $ -

Fund Balances, end of year $ 2,300
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS

" FIRE LOSS SECURITY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES $ - 3 - $ 9948  § 9,948
EXPENDITURES 13,213 5,000 9,000 (4,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/ .
(under) expenditures (13,213) (5,000) 948 5,948
Fund Balances, beginning of year 9,000 9,000 9,000 -
Encumbrances, end_ of year - - - - -
Fund Balances, end of year $ 4213) $ 4,000 $ 9,948 $ 5,948
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
CEMETERY MAINTENANCE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
Actual - Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES:
" Charges for services $ 8,300 $ 8,300 $ 10,180 $ 1,880
Investment ipcome ’ 30,000 30,000 30,651 651
Total revenues 38,300 38,300 40,831 2,531
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Health ,
Contractual, materials and other 1,000 1,000 297 703
Total expenditures . 1,000 1,000 297 703
Excess (deﬁciency)' of revenues over/ )
(under) expenditures 37,300 37,300 40,534 3,234
OTHER FINANCING USES: :
Transfers out (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) -
Total other ﬁnﬁncing uses (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over/(under)
expenditures and other financing uses - 27,300 27,300 30,534 3,234
Fund Balances, beginning of year . 574,909 574,909 5’_/4,909 -
- Encumbrances, end of year - - - -
Fund Balances, end of year $ 602,209 °§ 602,209 $ 605,443 $ 3,234
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
MAUSOLEUM MAINTENANCE FUND '

. FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

- REVENUES: -

Charges for services

Investment income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/
(under) expenditures

Fund Balances, beginning of year
Encumbrances, end of year
Fund Balances, end of year

: Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget

$ 1,500 $ 1,500 $ 420 $ (1,080)

- - 445 445

1,500 1,500 865 (635)

1,500 1,500 865 (635)
8,078 8,078 8,078 -

$ 9,578 $ 9,578 - § 8,943 $ . (635 -
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Actual Variance
Original Final Including - from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES: :
Intergovernmental revenues - $ 63,000 $ 63,000 $ 11,000 $ (52,000)
Investment income - - -
Miscellaneous receipts and .
reimbursements - - - -
Total revenues 63,000 63,000 11,000 (52,000)
EXPENDITURES:
Contractual, materials and other - - 4,848,040 5,723,200 4,570,534 1,152,666
Total expenditures 4,848,040 5,723,200 _ 4,570,534 1,152,666
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/ i ]
(under) expenditures (4,785,040) - (5,660,200) (4,559,534) 1,100,666
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 2,651,368 ~ 2,651,368 2,535,173 (116,195)
Total other financing sources ) 2,651,368 2,651,368 2,535,173 (116,195)
Excess (deﬁciency) of revenues and other
financing sources over/(under)
expenditures and other financing uses . (2,133,672) (3,008,832) (2,024,361) 984,471
. Fund Balances, beginning of year 2,444,157 2,444,157 2,444,157 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - ) 1,031,527 1,031,527
Fund Balances, end of year $ 310,485 $ (564,675) $ 1,451,323 $ 2,015,998
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CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS -

CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

» Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ -
Investment income 30,000 30,000 17,403 (12,597
Total revenues 130,000 130,000 117,403 (12,597)
EXPENDITURES . - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over/ .

(under) expenditures 130,000 130,000 117,403 (12,597)
Other Financing Sources / (Uses):

Transfers out (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) -

Total other financing sources (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

financing sources over/(under)

expenditures and other ﬂ_nancing uses (120,000) 1(120,000) (132,597) (12,597)
Fund Balances, beginning of year 472,104 472,104 472,104 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - - -
Fund Balances, end of year $ 352,104 $ 352,104 $ 339,507 $ (12,597)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 .

Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
‘REVENUES: ) .
Special assessments $ 46,000 $ 46,000 $ 41,913 $ (4.087)
Total revenues 46,000 46,000 41,913 - (4,087)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community environment
Contractual, materials and other 57,200 72,573 69,409 3,164
Total expenditures 57,200 72,573 69,409 3,164
Excess (deficiency) of revennes over/

(under) expenditures (11,200) (26,573) (27,496) (923)
Fund Balances, beginning of year 94,799 94,799 94,799 -
Encumbrances, end of year - - _ 38,154 38,154
Fund Balances, end of year $ 83,599 $ $ 105,457 $ 37,231

-90 -

68,226



CITY OF SIDNEY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS
MONUMENTAL BUILDING RENOVATION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

) Actual Variance
Original Final Including from Final
Budget Budget Encumbrances Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues $ - $ - $ - -
Miscellaneous receipts and
reimbursements - - - -
Total revenues - - - - - -
EXPENDITURES:
Contractual, materials and other ) 488,536 666,107 637,214 28,893
Total expenditures : 488,536 666,107 637,214 - 28,893
Excess (deficiency) 6f revenues over/

(under) expenditures (488,536) (666,107) (637,214) 28,893
Fund Balances, beginning of year ' 651,964 651,964 651,964 -
Encumbrances, end of year . - - 7,286 7,286
Fund Balances, end of year $ - 163,428 3 (14,143) $ 22,036 36,179
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370
Facsimile  614-466-4490

CITY OF SIDNEY

SHELBY COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
AUGUST 6, 2002
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